This Preliminary Official Statement and the information contained herein are subject to completion and amendment. These securities may not be sold nor may offers to buy be accepted prior to the time the Official Statement is delivered in final form. Under

no circumstances shall this Preliminary Official Statement constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy these securities nor shall there be any sale of these securities in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful

prior to registration or qualification under the securities laws of any such jurisdiction. This Preliminary Official Statement is in a form deemed final as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15¢2-12(b) (1), but is subject to revision, amendment and completion

in a Final Official Statement.

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED OCTOBER 10, 2018

In the opinion of Quarles & Brady LLP, Bond Counsel, assuming continued compliance with the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, under
existing law interest on the Notes is excludable from gross income and is not an item of tax preference for federal income tax purposes. See "TAX EXEMPTION" herein
for amore detailed discussion of some of the federal income tax consequences of owning the Notes. The interest on the Notes is not exempt from present Wisconsin income
or franchise taxes.

The County will designate the Notes as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, relating
to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax purposes, interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt
obligations.

New Issue Rating Application Made: Moody's Investors Service, Inc.

EAU CLAIRE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

$10,000,000* GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTES, SERIES 2018A
BID OPENING: October 16, 2018, 10:30 A.M., C.T. CONSIDERATION: October 16, 2018, 7:00 P.M., C.T.

PURPOSE/AUTHORITY/SECURITY: The $10,000,000* General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2018A (the
"Notes") of Eau Claire County, Wisconsin (the "County") are being issued pursuant to Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin
Statutes, for public purposes, including financing 2018 capital improvement projects and highway improvements. The Notes
are general obligations of the County, and all the taxable property in the County is subject to the levy of a tax to pay the
principal of and interest on the Notes as they become due which tax may, under current law, be levied without limitation
as to rate or amount. Delivery is subject to receipt of an approving legal opinion of Quarles & Brady LLP, Milwaukee,
Wisconsin.

DATE OF NOTES: November 1, 2018

MATURITY: September 1 as follows:
Year Amount* Year Amount* Year Amount*
2019 $970,000 2023 $1,015,000 2027 $1,055,000
2020 945,000 2024 965,000 2028 1,085,000
2021 965,000 2025 995,000
2022 985,000 2026 1,020,000

*MATURITY The County reserves the right to increase or decrease the principal amount of the Notes on

ADJUSTMENTS: the day of sale, in increments of $5,000 each. Increases or decreases may be made in any

maturity. Ifany principal amounts are adjusted, the purchase price proposed will be adjusted
to maintain the same gross spread per $1,000.

TERM BONDS: See “Term Bond Option” herein.
INTEREST: September 1, 2019 and semiannually thereafter.

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION:Notes maturing on September 1, 2025 and thereafter are subject to call for prior optional
redemption on September 1, 2024 or any date thereafter, at a price of par plus accrued

interest.
MINIMUM BID: $9,880,000.
MAXIMUM BID: $10,200,000.

GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT:  Agood faith deposit in the amount of $200,000 shall be made by the winning bidder by wire
transfer of funds.

PAYING AGENT: County officer or a bank or trust company to be selected by the County.

BOND COUNSEL &
DISCLOSURE COUNSEL: Quarles & Brady LLP.

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR: Ehlers and Associates, Inc.
BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY: See “Book-Entry-Only System” herein (unless otherwise specified by the purchaser).



REPRESENTATIONS

No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the County to give any information or to make any representation other
than those contained in this Preliminary Official Statement and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied
upon as having been authorized by the County. This Preliminary Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of
an offer to buy any of the Notes in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation in such
jurisdiction.

This Preliminary Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the Syndicate Manager or Syndicate Members. Statements
contained herein which involve estimates or matters of opinion are intended solely as such and are not to be construed as representations of
fact. Ehlers & Associates, Inc. prepared this Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda thereto relying on information of the County and
other sources for which there is reasonable basis for believing the information is accurate and complete. Quarles & Brady LLP will serve as
Disclosure Counsel to the County with respect to the Notes. Compensation of Ehlers & Associates, Inc., payable entirely by the County, is
contingent upon the sale of the Notes.

COMPLIANCE WITH S.E.C. RULE 15c2-12

Certain municipal obligations (issued in an aggregate amount over $1,000,000) are subject to Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”).

Preliminary Official Statement: This Preliminary Official Statement was prepared for the County for dissemination to potential investors.
Its primary purpose is to disclose information regarding the Notes to prospective underwriters in the interest of receiving competitive proposals
in accordance with the sale notice contained herein. Unless an addendum is posted prior to the sale, this Preliminary Official Statement shall
be deemed nearly final for purposes of the Rule subject to completion, revision and amendment in a Final Official Statement as defined below.

Review Period: This Preliminary Official Statement has been distributed to prospective bidders for review. Comments or requests for the
correction of omissions or inaccuracies must be submitted to Ehlers & Associates, Inc. at least two business days prior to the sale. Requests
for additional information or corrections in the Preliminary Official Statement received on or before this date will not be considered a
qualification of a proposal received from an underwriter. If there are any changes, corrections or additions to the Preliminary Official
Statement, interested bidders will be informed by an addendum prior to the sale.

Final Official Statement: Copies of the Final Official Statement will be delivered to the underwriter (Syndicate Manager) within seven
business days following the proposal acceptance.

Continuing Disclosure: Subject to certain exemptions, issues in an aggregate amount over $1,000,000 may be required to comply with
provisions of the Rule which require that underwriters obtain from the issuers of municipal securities (or other obligated party) an agreement
for the benefit of the owners of the securities to provide continuing disclosure with respect to those securities. This Preliminary Official
Statement describes the conditions under which the County is required to comply with the Rule.

CLOSING CERTIFICATES

Upon delivery of the Notes, the underwriter (Syndicate Manager) will be furnished with the following items: (1) a certificate of the appropriate
officials to the effect that at the time of the sale of the Notes and all times subsequent thereto up to and including the time of the delivery of
the Notes, this Preliminary Official Statement did not and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; (2) a receipt signed
by the appropriate officer evidencing payment for the Notes; (3) a certificate evidencing the due execution of the Notes, including statements
that (a) no litigation of any nature is pending, or to the knowledge of signers, threatened, restraining or enjoining the issuance and delivery of
the Notes, (b) neither the corporate existence or boundaries of the County nor the title of the signers to their respective offices is being
contested, and (c) no authority or proceedings for the issuance of the Notes have been repealed, revoked or rescinded; and (4) a certificate
setting forth facts and expectations of the County which indicates that the County does not expect to use the proceeds of the Notes in a manner
that would cause them to be arbitrage bonds within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or within
the meaning of applicable Treasury Regulations.
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INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT

This Preliminary Official Statement contains certain information regarding Eau Claire County, Wisconsin (the
"County") and the issuance of its $10,000,000* General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2018A (the "Notes").
Any descriptions or summaries of the Notes, statutes, or documents included herein are not intended to be complete
and are qualified in their entirety by reference to such statutes and documents and the form of the Notes to be included
in the resolution awarding the sale of the Notes ("Award Resolution") to be adopted by the Board of Supervisors on
October 16, 2018.

Inquiries may be directed to Ehlers & Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers"” or the "Municipal Advisor"), Roseville, Minnesota,
(651) 697-8500, the County's Municipal Advisor. A copy of this Preliminary Official Statement may be downloaded
from Ehlers’ web site at www.ehlers-inc.com by connecting to the link to the Bond Sales and following the directions
at the top of the site.

THE NOTES

GENERAL

The Notes will be issued in fully registered form as to both principal and interest in denominations of $5,000 each
or any integral multiple thereof, and will be dated, as originally issued, as of November 1, 2018. The Notes will
mature on September 1 in the years and amounts set forth on the cover of this Preliminary Official Statement. Interest
will be payable on September 1 and March 1 of each year, commencing September 1, 2019, to the registered owners
of the Notes appearing of record in the bond register as of the close of business on the 15th day (whether or not a
business day) of the immediately preceding month. Interest will be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of
twelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board
("MSRB"). All Notes of the same maturity must bear interest from the date of issue until paid at a single, uniform rate.
Each rate must be expressed in an integral multiple of 5/100 or 1/8 of 1%.

Unless otherwise specified by the purchaser, the Notes will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for
The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"). (See "Book-Entry-Only System" herein.) As long
as the Notes are held under the book-entry system, beneficial ownership interests in the Notes may be acquired in
book-entry form only, and all payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes shall be made
through the facilities of DTC and its participants. If the book-entry system is terminated, principal of, premium, if
any, and interest on the Notes shall be payable as provided in the Award Resolution.

The County may designate a County officer or select a bank or trust company to act as paying agent (the “Paying

Agent”). If a bank or trust company is selected as Paying Agent, the County will pay the charges for Paying Agent
services. The County reserves the right to remove the Paying Agent and to appoint a successor.

*Preliminary, subject to change.



OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

At the option of the County, the Notes maturing on or after September 1, 2025 shall be subject to optional redemption
prior to maturity on September 1, 2024 or on any date thereafter, at a price of par plus accrued interest.

Redemption may be in whole or in part of the Notes subject to prepayment. If redemption is in part, the selection of
the amounts and maturities of the Notes to be redeemed shall be at the discretion of the County. If only part of the
Notes having a common maturity date are called for redemption, then the County or Paying Agent, if any, will notify
DTC of the particular amount of such maturity to be redeemed. DTC will determine by lot the amount of each
participant's interest in such maturity to be redeemed and each participant will then select by lot the beneficial
ownership interest in such maturity to be redeemed.

Notice of such call shall be given by sending a notice by registered or certified mail, facsimile or electronic
transmission, overnight delivery service or in any other manner required by DTC, not less than 30 days nor more than
60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owner of each Note to be redeemed at the address
shown on the registration books.

AUTHORITY; PURPOSE

The Notes are being issued pursuant to Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin Statutes, for public purposes, including

financing 2018 capital improvement projects and highway improvements.

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES*

Sources

Par Amount of Notes $10,000,000

Total Sources $10,000,000
Uses

Estimated Underwriter's Discount (1.000%) $100,000

Costs of Issuance 58,650

Deposit to Project Construction Fund 9,839,885

Rounding Amount 1,465

Total Uses $10,000,000

*Preliminary, subject to change

SECURITY

For the prompt payment of the Notes with interest thereon and for the levy of taxes sufficient for this purpose, the full
faith, credit and resources of the County will be irrevocably pledged. The County will levy a direct, annual,
irrepealable tax on all taxable property in the County sufficient to pay the interest on the Notes when it becomes due
and also to pay and discharge the principal on the Notes at maturity, in compliance with Article XI, Section 3 of the
Wisconsin Constitution. Such tax may, under current law, be levied without limitation as to rate or amount.



RATING
General obligation debt of the County is currently rated "Aal" by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”).

The County has requested a rating on the Notes from Moody's, and bidders will be notified as to the assigned rating
prior to the sale. Such rating reflects only the views of such organization and explanations of the significance of such
rating may be obtained from Moody's. Generally, a rating agency bases its rating on the information and materials
furnished to it and on investigations, studies and assumptions of its own. There is no assurance that such rating will
continue for any given period of time or that it will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by such rating
agency, if in the judgment of such rating agency circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or
withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Notes.

Such rating is not to be construed as a recommendation of the rating agency to buy, sell or hold the Notes, and the
rating assigned by the rating agency should be evaluated independently. Except as may be required by the Disclosure
Undertaking described under the heading “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE” neither the County nor the underwriter
undertake responsibility to bring to the attention of the owner of the Notes any proposed changes in or withdrawal
of such rating or to oppose any such revision or withdrawal.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist the underwriters in complying with Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission, pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Rule™), the County shall covenant
to take certain actions pursuant to the Award Resolution adopted by the Board of Supervisors by entering into a
Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Disclosure Undertaking™) for the benefit of holders, including beneficial
holders. The Disclosure Undertaking requires the County to provide electronically or in the manner otherwise
prescribed certain financial information annually and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain events
enumerated in the Rule. The details and terms of the Disclosure Undertaking for the Notes are set forth in Appendix
D to be executed and delivered by the County at the time of delivery of the Notes. Such Disclosure Undertaking will
be in substantially the form attached hereto.

The County's operating data for the years ended December 31, 2013, December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2015 was
timely filed, but did not include certain information required by the County’s continuing disclosure undertakings.
Except to the extent that the preceding is deemed to be material, in the past five years the County believes it has not
failed to comply in all material respects with its prior undertakings under the Rule. The County has reviewed its
continuing disclosure responsibilities to help ensure compliance in the future.

A failure by the County to comply with the Disclosure Undertaking will not constitute an event of default on the
Notes. However, such a failure may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Notes and their market
price.

The County will file its continuing disclosure information using the Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA?”)
system or any system that may be prescribed in the future. Investors will be able to access continuing disclosure
information filed with the MSRB at www.emma.msrb.org. Ehlers is currently engaged as disclosure dissemination
agent for the County.




LEGAL MATTERS

An opinion as to the validity of the Notes and the exemption from federal taxation of the interest thereon will be
furnished by Quarles & Brady LLP, Bond Counsel to the County, and will be available at the time of delivery of the
Notes. The legal opinion will be issued on the basis of existing law and will state that the Notes are valid and binding
general obligations of the County; provided that the rights of the owners of the Notes and the enforceability of the
Notes may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting
creditors' rights and by equitable principles (which may be applied in either a legal or equitable proceeding). (See
“FORM OF LEGAL OPINION" found in Appendix B).

Quarles & Brady LLP has also been retained by the County to serve as Disclosure Counsel to the County with respect
to the Notes. Although, as Disclosure Counsel to the County, Quarles & Brady LLP has assisted the County with
certain disclosure matters, Quarles & Brady LLP has not undertaken to independently verify the accuracy,
completeness or sufficiency of this Official Statement or other offering material relating to the Notes and assumes no
responsibility whatsoever nor shall have any liability to any other party for the statements or information contained
or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement. Further, Quarles & Brady LLP makes no representation as
to the suitability of the Notes for any investor.

TAX EXEMPTION

Quarles & Brady LLP, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, Bond Counsel, will deliver a legal opinion with respect to the federal
income tax exemption applicable to the interest on the Notes under existing law substantially in the following form:

"The interest on the Notes is excludable for federal income tax purposes from the gross income of the owners
of the Notes. The interest on the Notes is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative
minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") on
individuals. The Code contains requirements that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Notes
in order for interest on the Notes to be or continue to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax
purposes. Failure to comply with certain of those requirements could cause the interest on the Notes to be
included in gross income retroactively to the date of issuance of the Notes. The County has agreed to comply
with all of those requirements. The opinion set forth in the first sentence of this paragraph is subject to the
condition that the County comply with those requirements. We express no opinion regarding other federal
tax consequences arising with respect to the Notes."

The interest on the Notes is not exempt from present Wisconsin income or franchise taxes.

Prospective purchasers of the Notes should be aware that ownership of the Notes may result in collateral federal
income tax consequences to certain taxpayers. Bond Counsel will not express any opinion as to such collateral tax
consequences. Prospective purchasers of the Notes should consult their tax advisors as to collateral federal income
tax consequences.

From time to time legislation is proposed, and there are or may be legislative proposals pending in the Congress of
the United States that, if enacted, could alter or amend the federal tax matters referred to above or adversely affect
the market value of the Notes. It cannot be predicted whether, or in what form, any proposal that could alter one or
more of the federal tax matters referred to above or adversely affect the market value of the Notes may be
enacted. Prospective purchasers of the Notes should consult their own tax advisors regarding any pending or proposed
federal tax legislation. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any pending or proposed federal tax legislation.



ORIGINAL ISSUE DISCOUNT

To the extent that the initial public offering price of certain of the Notes is less than the principal amount payable at
maturity, such Notes ("Discounted Bonds") will be considered to be issued with original issue discount. The original
issue discount is the excess of the stated redemption price at maturity of a Discounted Bond over the initial offering
price to the public, excluding underwriters or other intermediaries, at which price a substantial amount of such
Discounted Bonds were sold (issue price). With respect to a taxpayer who purchases a Discounted Bond in the initial
public offering at the issue price and who holds such Discounted Bond to maturity, the full amount of original issue
discount will constitute interest that is not includible in the gross income of the owner of such Discounted Bond for
federal income tax purposes and such owner will not, subject to the caveats and provisions herein described, realize
taxable capital gain upon payment of such Discounted Bond upon maturity.

Original issue discount is treated as compounding semiannually, at a rate determined by reference to the yield to
maturity of each individual Discounted Bond, on days that are determined by reference to the maturity date of such
Discounted Bond. The amount treated as original issue discount on a Discounted Bond for a particular semiannual
accrual period is generally equal to (a) the product of (i) the yield to maturity for such Discounted Bond (determined
by compounding at the close of each accrual period) and (ii) the amount that would have been the tax basis of such
Discounted Bond at the beginning of the particular accrual period if held by the original purchaser; and less (b) the
amount of any interest payable for such Discounted Bond during the accrual period. The tax basis is determined by
adding to the initial public offering price on such Discounted Bond the sum of the amounts that have been treated as
original issue discount for such purposes during all prior periods. Ifa Discounted Bond is sold or exchanged between
semiannual compounding dates, original issue discount that would have been accrued for that semiannual
compounding period for federal income tax purposes is to be apportioned in equal amounts among the days in such
compounding period.

For federal income tax purposes, the amount of original issue discount that is treated as having accrued with respect
to such Discounted Bond is added to the cost basis of the owner in determining gain or loss upon disposition of a
Discounted Bond (including its sale, exchange, redemption, or payment at maturity). Amounts received upon
disposition of a Discounted Bond that are attributable to accrued original issue discount will be treated as tax-exempt
interest, rather than as taxable gain.

The accrual or receipt of original issue discount on the Discounted Bonds may result in certain collateral federal
income tax consequences for the owners of such Discounted Bonds. The extent of these collateral tax consequences
will depend upon the owner's particular tax status and other items of income or deduction.

The Code contains additional provisions relating to the accrual of original issue discount. Owners who purchase
Discounted Bonds at a price other than the issue price or who purchase such Discounted Bonds in the secondary
market should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of owning the Discounted Bonds.
Under the applicable provisions governing the determination of state and local taxes, accrued interest on the
Discounted Bonds may be deemed to be received in the year of accrual even though there will not be a corresponding
cash payment until a later year. Owners of Discounted Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to
the state and local tax consequences of owning the Discounted Bonds.



BOND PREMIUM

To the extent that the initial offering price of certain of the Notes is more than the principal amount payable at
maturity, such Notes ("Premium Bonds") will be considered to have bond premium.

Any Premium Bond purchased in the initial offering at the issue price will have "amortizable bond premium™ within
the meaning of Section 171 of the Code. The amortizable bond premium of each Premium Bond is calculated on a
daily basis from the issue date of such Premium Bond until its stated maturity date (or call date, if any) on the basis
of a constant interest rate compounded at each accrual period (with straight line interpolation between the
compounding dates). An owner of a Premium Bond that has amortizable bond premium is not allowed any deduction
for the amortizable bond premium; rather the amortizable bond premium attributable to a taxable year is applied
against (and operates to reduce) the amount of tax-exempt interest payments on the Premium Bonds. During each
taxable year, such an owner must reduce his or her tax basis in such Premium Bond by the amount of the amortizable
bond premium that is allocable to the portion of such taxable year during which the holder held such Premium Bond.
The adjusted tax basis in a Premium Bond will be used to determine taxable gain or loss upon a disposition (including
the sale, exchange, redemption, or payment at maturity) of such Premium Bond.

Owners of Premium Bonds who did not purchase such Premium Bonds in the initial offering at the issue price should
consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of owning such Premium Bonds. Owners of
Premium Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning
the Premium Bonds.

QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS

The County will designate the Notes as "qualified tax-exempt obligations™ for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the
Code relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax purposes, interest
expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR

Ehlers has served as municipal advisor to the County in connection with the issuance of the Notes. The Municipal
Advisor cannot participate in the underwriting of the Notes. The financial information included in this Official
Statement has been compiled by the Municipal Advisor. Such information does not purport to be a review, audit or
certified forecast of future events and may not conform with accounting principles applicable to compilations of
financial information. Ehlers is not a firm of certified public accountants. Ehlers is registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the MSRB as a Municipal Advisor.

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Bond Trust Services Corporation ("BTSC") and Ehlers Investment Partners, LLC ("EIP") are affiliate companies of
Ehlers. BTSC is chartered by the State of Minnesota and authorized in Minnesota, Wisconsin, Colorado, and Illinois
to transact the business of a limited purpose trust company. BTSC provides paying agent services to debt issuers.
EIP is a Registered Investment Advisor with the Securities and Exchange Commission. EIP assists issuers with the
investment of bond proceeds or investing other issuer funds. This includes escrow bidding agent services. Issuers,
such as the County, have retained or may retain BTSC and/or EIP to provide these services. If hired, BTSC and/or
EIP would be retained by the County under an agreement separate from Ehlers.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The basic financial statements of the County for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 have been audited by
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP, Eau Claire, Wisconsin, independent auditors (the "Auditor™). The report of the Auditor,
together with the basic financial statements, component units financial statements, and notes to the financial
statements are attached hereto as “APPENDIX A — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS”. The Auditor has not been
engaged to perform and has not performed, since the date of its report included herein, any procedures on the financial
statements addressed in that report. The Auditor also has not performed any procedures relating to this Official
Statement.

RISK FACTORS

Following is a description of possible risks to holders of the Notes without weighting as to probability. This
description of risks is not intended to be all-inclusive, and there may be other risks not now perceived or listed here.

Taxes: The Notes are general obligations of the County, the ultimate payment of which rests in the County's ability
to levy and collect sufficient taxes to pay debt service. In the event of delayed billing, collection or distribution of
property taxes, sufficient funds may not be available to the County in time to pay debt service when due.

State Actions: Many elements of local government finance, including the issuance of debt and the levy of property
taxes, are controlled by state government. Future actions of the state may affect the overall financial condition of the
County, the taxable value of property within the County, and the ability of the County to levy and collect property
taxes.

Future Changes in Law: Various State and federal laws, regulations and constitutional provisions apply to the
County and to the Notes. The County can give no assurance that there will not be a change in or interpretation of any
such applicable laws, regulations and provisions which would have a material effect on the County or the taxing
authority of the County.

Property Tax Collection: Although the levying of the property tax for the payment of principal and interest on the
Notes is irrepealable, and the County Clerk is mandated to carry the tax onto the rolls, the levy could be inadvertently
omitted, causing a delay in payments when due. Property tax statements are distributed to taxpayers by the town,
village and city clerks in December of the levy year. Current property tax settlement law directs counties to settle in
full for all taxes levied by cities, villages, towns and school districts on or about August 20 of the collection year.

Ratings; Interest Rates: In the future, the County's credit rating may be reduced or withdrawn, or interest rates for
this type of obligation may rise generally, either possibility resulting in a reduction in the value of the Notes for resale
prior to maturity.

Tax Exemption: If the federal government taxes all or a portion of the interest on municipal bonds or notes or if the
State government increases its tax on interest on bonds and notes, directly or indirectly, or if there is a change in
federal or state tax policy, then the value of these Notes may fall for purposes of resale. Noncompliance by the
County with the covenants in the Award Resolution relating to certain continuing requirements of the Code may result
in inclusion of interest to be paid on the Notes in gross income of the recipient for United States income tax purposes,
retroactive to the date of issuance.

Continuing Disclosure: A failure by the County to comply with the Disclosure Undertaking for continuing
disclosure (see "CONTINUING DISCLOSURE") will not constitute an event of default on the Notes. Any such
failure must be reported in accordance with the Rule and must be considered by any broker, dealer, or municipal
securities dealer before recommending the purchase or sale of the Notes in the secondary market. Such a failure may
adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Notes and their market price.



Book-Entry-Only System: The timely credit of payments for principal and interest on the Notes to the accounts of
the Beneficial Owners of the Notes may be delayed due to the customary practices, standing instructions or for other
unknown reasons by DTC participants or indirect participants. Since the notice of redemption or other notices to
holders of these obligations will be delivered by the County to DTC only, there may be a delay or failure by DTC,
DTC participants or indirect participants to notify the Beneficial Owners of the Notes.

Depository Risk: Wisconsin Statutes direct the local treasurer to immediately deposit upon receipt thereof, the funds
of the municipality in a public depository designated by the governing body. A public depository means a federal
or state credit union, federal or state savings and loan association, state bank, savings and trust company, mutual
savings bank or national bank in Wisconsin or the local government pooled investment fund operated by the State
Investment Board. It is not uncommon for a municipality to have deposits exceeding limits of federal and state
insurance programs. Failure of a depository could result in loss of public funds or a delay in obtaining them. Such
a loss or delay could interrupt a timely payment of municipal debt.

Economy: A combination of economic, climatic, political or civil disruptions or terrorist actions outside of the
control of the County, including loss of major taxpayers or major employers, could affect the local economy and result
in reduced tax collections and/or increased demands upon local government. Real or perceived threats to the financial
stability of the County may have an adverse effect on the value of the Notes in the secondary market.

Secondary Market for the Notes: No assurance can be given that a secondary market will develop for the purchase
and sale of the Notes or, if a secondary market exists, that such Notes can be sold for any particular price. The
underwriters are not obligated to engage in secondary market trading or to repurchase any of the Notes at the request
of the owners thereof. Prices of the Notes as traded in the secondary market are subject to adjustment upward and
downward in response to changes in the credit markets and other prevailing circumstances. No guarantee exists as
to the future market value of the Notes. Such market value could be substantially different from the original purchase
price.

Bankruptcy: The rights and remedies of the holders may be limited by and are subject to the provisions of federal
bankruptcy laws, to other laws, or equitable principles that may affect the enforcement of creditors’ rights, to the
exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to limitations on legal remedies against local governments.
The opinion of Bond Counsel to be delivered with respect to the Notes will be similarly qualified. See “MUNICIPAL
BANKRUPTCY” herein.

Cybersecurity: The County is dependent on electronic information technology systems to deliver services. These
systems may contain sensitive information or support critical operational functions which may have value for
unauthorized purposes. As a result, the electronic systems and networks may be targets of cyberattack. There can
be no assurance that the County will not experience an information technology breach or attack with financial
consequences that could have a material adverse impact.



VALUATIONS

WISCONSIN PROPERTY VALUATIONS; PROPERTY TAXES
Equalized Value

Section 70.57, Wisconsin Statutes, requires the Department of Revenue to annually determine the equalized value
(also referred to as full equalized value or aggregate full value) of all taxable property in each county and taxation
district. The equalized value is an independent estimate of value used to equate individual local assessment policies
so that property taxes are uniform throughout the various subdivisions in the State. Equalized value is calculated
based on the history of comparable sales and information about value changes or taxing status provided by the local
assessor. A comparison of the State-determined equalized value and the local assessed value, expressed as a
percentage, is known as the assessment ratio or level of assessment. The Department of Revenue notifies each county
and taxing jurisdiction of its equalized value on August 15; school districts are notified on October 1. The equalized
value of each county is the sum of the valuations of all cities, villages, and towns within its boundaries. Taxing
jurisdictions lying in more than one municipality, such as counties, school districts, or special taxing districts, use the
equalized value of the underlying units in calculating and levying their respective levies. Equalized values are also
used to apportion state aids and calculate municipal general obligation debt limits.

Assessed Value

The "assessed value" of taxable property in a municipality is determined by the local assessor, except for
manufacturing properties which are valued by the State. Each city, village or town retains its own local assessor, who
must be certified by the State Department of Revenue. Assessed value is used by these municipalities to determine
tax levy mill rates and to apportion levies among individual property owners. Each taxing district must assess
property at full value at least once in every five-year period. The State requires that the assessed values must be
within 10% of State equalized values at least once every four years. The local assessor values property as of January
1 each year and submits those values to each municipality by the second Monday in June. The assessor also reports
any value changes taking place since the previous year, to the Department of Revenue, by the second Monday in June.



CURRENT PROPERTY VALUATIONS

2018 Equalized Value $8,754,801,800
2018 Equalized Value Reduced by Tax Increment Valuation $8,372,886,600
2017 Assessed Value $7,637,049,288

2018 EQUALIZED VALUE BY CLASSIFICATION

2018 Percent of Total
Equalized Value* Equalized Value
Residential $5,510,292,200 62.940%
Commercial 2,464,760,200 28.153%
Manufacturing 218,275,500 2.493%
Agricultural 23,011,800 0.263%
Undeveloped 22,760,800 0.260%
Ag Forest 60,859,100 0.695%
Forest 110,561,500 1.263%
Other 140,005,400 1.599%
Personal Property 204,275,300 2.333%
Total $8,754,801,800 100.000%
TREND OF VALUATIONS
Percent
Assessed Equalized Increase/Decrease
Year Value Value' in Equalized Value
2014 $7,110,737,145 $7,173,688,100 3.85%
2015 7,258,199,107 7,499,941,900 4.55%
2016 7,426,383,711 7,850,311,700 4.67%
2017 7,637,049,288 8,295,565,000 5.67%
2018 N/A? 8,754,801,800 5.54%

Source: Wisconsin Department of Revenue, Bureau of Equalization and Local Government Services Bureau.

! Includes tax increment valuation.
22018 Assessed Valuation is not yet available.
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LARGER TAXPAYERS

2017 Percent of

Equalized County's Total
Taxpayer Type of Business/Property Value? Equalized Value
Menard, Inc. Retail/Manufacturing $135,966,878 1.64%
Mayo Clinic Health Medical 81,118,093 0.98%
Oakwood Hills Mall Retail 79,579,041 0.96%
Gerber/Nestle Manufacturing 72,726,865 0.88%
Keystone Corporation Investment Real Estate 54,608,421 0.66%
Marshfield Clinic Medical 47,225,711 0.57%
MPT of Altoona Medical 32,697,310 0.39%
Arrowhead Properties Investment Real Estate 29,381,420 0.35%
Hi-Crush Industries Mining 25,891,857 0.31%
Prairie Park Property LLC Investment Real Estate 25,339,668 _0.31%
Total $584,535,264 7.05%

County's Total 2017 Equalized Value? $8,295,565,000

Source: The County.

1

Calculated by dividing the 2017 Assessed Values by the 2017 Aggregate Ratio of assessment for the municipality,
within the County, where each taxpayer is primarily located. Taxpayer information for 2018 is not yet available.

2 Includes tax increment valuation.
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DEBT

DIRECT DEBT

General Obligation Debt (see schedules following)

Total General Obligation Debt (includes the Notes)* $85,321,361

DEBT LIMIT

The constitutional general obligation debt limit for Wisconsin municipalities, including cities, villages, and counties
(Article XI, Section 3 of the Wisconsin Constitution and Section 67.03, Wisconsin Statutes) is 5% of the current
equalized value.

Equalized Value $8,754,801,800
Multiply by 5% 0.05
Statutory Debt Limit $ 437,740,090
Less: General Obligation Debt

(includes the Notes)* (85,321,361)
Unused Debt Limit* $ 352,418,729

*Preliminary, subject to change.
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UNDERLYING DEBT!

Taxing District
Cities of:
Altoona
Eau Claire
School Districts of:
Altoona
Augusta
Cadott Community
Chippewa Falls Area
Eau Claire Area
Eleva-Strum
Elk Mound Area
Fall Creek
Mondovi
Osseo-Fairchild
Technical College Districts of:

Chippewa Valley

County's Share of Total Underlying Debt

2018
Equalized
Value?

$ 682,442,800
5,245,506,200

839,960,444
323,951,841
368,668,593
3,114,955,111
7,304,279,556
272,398,784
366,210,601
337,537,040
437,984,139
455,463,866

25,774,534,842

% In
County

100.0000%
100.0000%

100.0000%
100.0000%
0.6181%
0.1911%
95.4124%
23.2236%
3.5560%
100.0000%
20.3050%
20.4874%

33.9669%

Total
G.O. Debt?

$18,830,000
127,785,000

19,910,000
6,280,000
10,412,222
53,405,000
61,270,000
13,680,000
5,355,000
13,635,000
1,552,549
6,595,000

31,285,000

County's
Proportionate
Share

$ 18,830,000
127,785,000

19,910,000
6,280,000
64,358
102,057
58,459,177
3,176,988
190,424
13,635,000
315,245
1,351,144

10,626,545

$260,725,938

1 Overlapping debt is as of the dated date of the Notes. Only those taxing jurisdictions with general obligation debt

outstanding are included in this section.

Includes tax increment valulation.

®  OQutstanding debt based on information obtained on EMMA and the Municipal Advisor's records.
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DEBT RATIOS

Debt/Equalized Debt/ Per

Value Capita

G.O. Debt $8,754,801,800 102,816"
Total General Obligation Debt* $ 85,321,361 0.97% $ 829.85
County's Share of Total Overlapping Debt $260,725,938 2.98% 2,535.85
Total* $346,047,299 3.95% $ 3,365.70

*Preliminary, subject to change.

DEBT PAYMENT HISTORY

The County has no record of default in the payment of principal and interest on its debt. The County timely made
the September 1, 2017 principal and interest payments to The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") for the General
Obligation Building Bonds, Series 2008B, dated April 1, 2008. However, DTC did not send the payments out to
bondholders until September 6, 2017. As provided in the bond documents, the County may treat DTC as the absolute
owner thereof for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal and interest due on the bonds.

FUTURE FINANCING

The County plans to issue approximately $9,800,000 general obligation debt in mid-to-late 2019, for 2019 projects.
Aside from the preceding, the County does not expect to issue any additional debt in the next 12 months.

1

Estimated 2018 population.
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TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Total Levy Levy/Equalized Value
for All Reduced by Tax

Levy/ Levy for County Units in % Collected Increment Valuation

Collect Purposes Only County to Date in Dollars per $1,000
2013/14 $26,178,192 $151,529,795 100.00% $3.88
2014/15 27,690,123 155,168,476 99.98% 3.92
2015/16 29,015,350 159,300,022 99.88% 4.02
2016/17 30,595,302 169,167,068 99.77% 4.09
2017/18 32,444,886 172,992,808 99.40% 4.25

Property tax statements are distributed to taxpayers by the town, village, and city treasurers in December of the levy
year. Current state law requires counties to pay 100% of the real property taxes levied to cities, villages, towns,
school districts and other taxing entities on or about August 20 of the collection year.

Personal property taxes, special assessments, special charges and special taxes must be paid to the town, city or village
treasurer in full by January 31, unless the municipality, by ordinance, permits special assessments to be paid in
installments. Real property taxes must be paid in full by January 31 or in two equal installments by January 31 and
July 31. Alternatively, municipalities may adopt a payment plan which permits real property taxes to be paid in three
or more equal installments, provided that the first installment is paid by January 31, one-half of the taxes are paid by
April 30 and the remainder is paid by July 31. Amounts paid on or before January 31 are paid to the town, city or
village treasurer. Amounts paid after January 31, are paid to the county treasurer unless the municipality has
authorized payment in three or more installments in which case payment is made to the town, city or village treasurer.
On or before January 15 and February 20 the town, city or village treasurer settles with other taxing jurisdictions for
all collections through December and January, respectively. In municipalities which have authorized the payment
of real property taxes in three or more installments, the town, city or village treasurer settles with the other taxing
jurisdictions on January 15, February 20 and on the fifteenth day of each month following the month in which an
installment payment is required. On or before August 20, the county treasurer must settle in full with the underlying
taxing districts for all real property taxes and special taxes. Any county board may authorize its county treasurer to
also settle in full with the underlying taxing districts for all special assessments and special charges. The county may
then recover any tax delinquencies by enforcing the lien on the property and retain any penalties or interest on the
delinquencies for which it has settled. Uncollected personal property taxes owed by an entity that has ceased
operations or filed a petition for bankruptcy, or are due on personal property that has been removed from the next
assessment roll are collected from each taxing entity in the year following the levy year.

17



PROPERTY TAX RATES OF LARGER MUNICIPALITIES WITHIN THE COUNTY

Full value rates for property taxes expressed in dollars per $1,000 of equalized value (excluding tax increment
valuation) that have been collected in recent years have been as follows:

Year Levied/

Year Collected Schools* County Local Other? Total
City of Altoona
2013/14 $11.51 $4.02 $6.11 $0.36 $22.00
2014/15 12.61 4.06 6.09 0.38 23.14
2015/16 13.04 4.16 6.18 0.40 23.78
2016/17 12.15 4.23 6.17 0.37 22.92
2017/18 11.42 4.21 6.16 0.12 21.91

City of Eau Claire

2013/14 $11.31 $3.65 $8.75 $0.17 $23.88
2014/15 10.52 3.75 8.72 0.17 23.16
2015/16 10.29 3.77 8.45 0.17 22.68
2016/17 10.65 3.83 8.54 0.18 23.20
2017/18 10.22 3.85 8.44 0.00 2251

Source: Property Tax Rates were extracted from Statement of Taxes prepared by the Wisconsin Department of
Revenue, Division of State and Local Finance.

DEBT ISSUANCE CONDITIONS FOR COUNTIES

Wisconsin Statutes Section 67.045 provides that general obligation bonds or notes can be issued by a county only if
one of the following conditions is met: (a) the bonds or notes are approved at a referendum; (b) the county board
adopts a resolution that sets forth its reasonable expectation that the issuance will not cause the county to exceed its
debt levy rate limit; (c) the debt is issued for regional projects; (d) the debt is issued to refund existing debt or (e) the
resolution authorizing the debt is approved by a vote of at least 3/4 of the members elect of the county board. In
addition, counties generally are prohibited from using the proceeds of general obligation bonds or notes to fund the
operating expenses of the general fund of the county or to fund the operating expenses of any special revenue fund
of the county that is supported by property taxes, although this prohibition does not apply to notes issued to pay
unfunded prior service liability contributions.

The initial resolution authorizing the Notes was approved by a vote of at least 3/4 of the members of the County Board
at a meeting on October 2, 2018.

The Schools tax rate reflects the composite rate of all local school districts and the technical college district.

Includes the state reforestation tax which is apportioned to each county on the basis of its full value. Counties,
in turn, apportion the tax to the tax districts within their borders on the basis of full value. It also includes taxes
levied for special purpose districts such as metropolitan sewerage districts, sanitary districts, and public inland
lake protection districts. Tax incrementvalues are notincluded. State property taxes were eliminated in the State's
2017-2019 budget act.
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LEVY LIMITS

Section 66.0602 of the Wisconsin Statutes, imposes a limit on property tax levies by cities, villages, towns and
counties. No city, village, town or county is permitted to increase its tax levy by a percentage that exceeds its
valuation factor (which is defined as a percentage equal to the greater of either the percentage change in the political
subdivision's January 1 equalized value due to new construction less improvements removed between the previous
year and the current or zero percent). The base amount in any year to which the levy limit applies is the actual levy
for the immediately preceding year. In 2018, and in each year thereafter, the base amount is the actual levy for the
immediately preceding year plus the amount of the payment from the State under Section 79.096 of the Wisconsin
Statutes (an amount equal to the property taxes formerly levied on certain items of personal property), and the levy
limit is the base amount multiplied by the valuation factor, minus the amount of the payment from the State under
Section 79.096 of the Wisconsin Statutes. This levy limitation is an overall limit, applying to levies for operations
as well as for other purposes.

A political subdivision that did not levy its full allowable levy in the prior year can carry forward the difference
between the allowable levy and the actual levy, up to a maximum of 1.5% of the prior year's actual levy. The use of
the carry forward levy adjustment needs to be approved by a majority vote of the political subdivision's governing
body (except in the case of towns) if the amount of carry forward levy adjustment is less than or equal to 0.5% and
by a super majority vote of the political subdivision's governing body (three-quarters vote if the governing body is
comprised of five or more members, two-thirds vote if the governing body is comprised of fewer than five members)
(except in the case of towns) if the amount of the carry forward levy adjustment is greater than 0.5% up to the
maximum increase of 1.5%. For towns, the use of the carry forward levy adjustment needs to be approved by a
majority vote of the annual town meeting or special town meeting after the town board has adopted a resolution in
favor of the adjustment by a majority vote if the amount of carry forward levy adjustment is less than or equal to 0.5%
or by two-thirds vote or more if the amount of carry forward levy adjustment is greater than 0.5% up to the maximum
of 1.5%.

Beginning with levies imposed in 2015, if a political subdivision does not make an adjustment in its levy as described
in the above paragraph in the current year, the political subdivision may increase its levy by the aggregate amount
of the differences between the political subdivision’s valuation factor in the previous year and the actual percent
increase ina political subdivision’s levy attributable to the political subdivision’s valuation factor in the previous year,
for the five years before the current year, less any amount of such aggregate amount already claimed as an adjustment
in any of the previous five years. The calculation of the aggregate amount available for such adjustment may not
include any year before 2014, and the maximum adjustment allowed may not exceed 5%. The use of the adjustment
described in this paragraph requires approval by a two-thirds vote of the political subdivision’s governing body, and
the adjustment may only be used if the political subdivision’s level of outstanding general obligation debt in the
current year is less than or equal to the political subdivision’s level of outstanding general obligation debt in the
previous year.

Special provisions are made with respect to property taxes levied to pay general obligation debt service. Those are
described below. In addition, the statute provides for certain other exclusions from and adjustments to the tax levy
limit. Among the items excluded from the limit are amounts levied for any revenue shortfall for debt service on a
revenue bond issued under Section 66.0621. Among the adjustments permitted is an adjustment applicable when a
tax increment district terminates, which allows an amount equal to the prior year's allowable levy multiplied by 50%
of the political subdivision's percentage growth due to the district's termination.

With respect to general obligation debt service, the following provisions are made:

(a) Ifapolitical subdivision's levy for the payment of general obligation debt service, including debt service on debt
issued or reissued to fund or refund outstanding obligations of the political subdivision and interest on outstanding
obligations of the political subdivision, on debt originally issued before July 1, 2005, is less in the current year than
in the previous year, the political subdivision is required to reduce its levy limit in the current year by the amount of
the difference between the previous year's levy and the current year's levy.
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(b) For obligations authorized before July 1, 2005, if the amount of debt service in the preceding year is less than the
amount of debt service needed in the current year, the levy limit is increased by the difference between the two
amounts. This adjustment is based on scheduled debt service rather than the amount actually levied for debt service
(after taking into account offsetting revenues such as sales tax revenues, special assessments, utility revenues, tax
increment revenues or surplus funds). Therefore, the levy limit could negatively impact political subdivisions that
experience a reduction in offsetting revenues.

(c) The levy limits do not apply to property taxes levied to pay debt service on general obligation debt authorized
on or after July 1, 2005.

The Notes were authorized after July 1, 2005 and therefore the levy limits do not apply to taxes levied to pay debt
service on the Notes.
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THE ISSUER

COUNTY GOVERNMENT

The County was organized in 1856 and is governed by a twenty-nine member Board of Supervisors. All supervisors
are elected to two-year terms. Current terms all expire in 2020 The appointed County Administrator and elected
County Clerk and County Treasurer are responsible for administrative details and financial records.

EMPLOYEES; PENSIONS

The County has 549 full-time, 50 part-time and 10 seasonal employees. All eligible employees in the County are
covered under the Wisconsin Retirement System ("WRS") established under Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes.
The WRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. WRS benefits and other plan provisions
are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes ("Chapter 40™). The Department of Employee Trust Funds
("ETF™) administers the WRS. Required contributions to the WRS are determined by the ETF Board pursuant to an
annual actuarial valuation in accordance with Chapter 40 and the ETF's funding policies. The ETF Board has stated
that its funding policy is to (i) ensure funds are adequate to pay benefits; (ii) maintain stable and predictable
contribution rates for employers and employees; and (iii) maintain inter-generational equity to ensure the cost of the
benefits is paid for by the generation that receives the benefits.

County employees are generally required to contribute half of the actuarially determined contributions, and the County
may not pay the employees' required contribution. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 (“Fiscal Year
2015"), the Fiscal Year ended December 31, 2016 (“Fiscal Year 2016") and the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017
("Fiscal Year 2017"), the County's portion of contributions to WRS (not including any employee contributions) totaled
$1,927,277, $1,890,030 and $2,025,920, respectively.

The County implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 ("GASB 68™) for Fiscal Year
2015.

GASB 68 requires calculation of a net pension liability for the pension plan. The net pension liability is calculated
as the difference between the pension plan's total pension liability and the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The
pension plan's total pension liability is the present value of the amounts needed to pay pension benefits earned by each
participant in the pension plan based on the service provided as of the date of the actuarial valuation. In other words,
it is a measure of the present value of benefits owed as of a particular date based on what has been earned only up to
that date, without taking into account any benefits earned after that date. The pension plan's fiduciary net position is
the market value of plan assets formally set aside in a trust and restricted to paying pension plan benefits. If the
pension plan's total pension liability exceeds the pension plan's fiduciary net position, then a net pension liability
results. If the pension plan's fiduciary net position exceeds the pension plan's total pension liability, then a net pension
asset results.

As of December 31, 2016, the total pension liability of the WRS was calculated as $93.4 billion and the fiduciary net
position of the WRS was calculated as $92.6 billion, resulting in a net pension liability of $0.8 billion.

Under GASB 68, each participating employer in a cost-sharing pension plan must report the employer's proportionate
share of the net pension liability or net pension asset of the pension plan. Accordingly, for Fiscal Year 2017, the
County reported a liability of $1,595,470 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability of the WRS. The net
pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2016 based on the County's share of contributions to the pension
plan relative to the contributions of all participating employers. The County's proportion was 0.19356886% of the
aggregate WRS net pension liability as of December 31, 2016.
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The calculation of the total pension liability and fiduciary net position are subject to a number of actuarial
assumptions, which may change in future actuarial valuations. Such changes may have a significant impact on the
calculation of the net pension liability of the WRS, which may also cause the ETF Board to change the contribution
requirements for employers and employees. For more detailed information regarding the WRS and such actuarial
assumptions, see Note 3.B. in the County's 2017 audited financial statements in Appendix A hereto.

Recognized and Certified Bargaining Units

All eligible County personnel are covered by the Municipal Employment Relations Act (MERA) of the Wisconsin
Statutes. Pursuant to that law, employees have limited rights to organize and collectively bargain with the municipal
employers. MERA was amended by 2011 Wisconsin Act 10 (the "Act™) and by 2011 Wisconsin Act 32, which altered
the collective bargaining rights of public employees in Wisconsin.

As aresult of the 2011 amendments to MERA, the County is prohibited from bargaining collectively with municipal
employees, other than public safety and transit employees, with respect to any factor or condition of employment
except total base wages. Even then, the County is limited to increasing total base wages beyond any increase in the
consumer price index since 180 days before the expiration of the previous collective bargaining agreement (unless
County were to seek approval for a higher increase through a referendum). Ultimately, the County can unilaterally
implement the wages for a collective bargaining unit.

Under the changes to MERA, impasse resolution procedures were removed from the law for municipal employees
of the type employed by the County, including binding interest arbitration. Strikes by any municipal employee or
labor organization are expressly prohibited. As a practical matter, it is anticipated that strikes will be rare.
Furthermore, if strikes do occur, they may be enjoined by the courts. Additionally, because the only legal subject of
bargaining is the base wage rates, all bargaining over items such as just cause, benefits, and terms of conditions of
employment are prohibited and cannot be included in a collective bargaining agreement. Impasse resolution for public
safety employees and transit employees is subject to final and binding arbitration procedures, which do not include
aright to strike. Interest arbitration is available for transit employees if certain conditions are met.

The following bargaining unit represents employees of the County:

Expiration Date of
Bargaining Unit Current Contract

Sheriff Non-Supervisory December 31, 2020

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The County does not pay directly for retirees’ post-employment benefits. Per State statutes, the County is required
to allow retirees to be covered by the County’s health plan as long as the retiree pays his/her premiums.

LITIGATION
There is no litigation threatened or pending questioning the organization or boundaries of the County or the right of

any of its officers to their respective offices or in any manner questioning their rights and power to execute and deliver
the Notes or otherwise questioning the validity of the Notes.
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MUNICIPAL BANKRUPTCY

Municipalities are prohibited from filing for bankruptcy under Chapter 11 (reorganization) or Chapter 7 (liquidation)
of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (11 U.S.C. 88 101-1532) (the “Bankruptcy Code”). Instead, the Bankruptcy Code
permits municipalities to file a petition under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code, but only if certain requirements are
met. These requirements include that the municipality must be “specifically authorized” under State law to file for
relief under Chapter 9. For these purposes, “State law” may include, without limitation, statutes of general
applicability enacted by the State legislature, special legislation applicable to a particular municipality, and/or
executive orders issued by an appropriate officer of the State’s executive branch.

As of the date hereof, Wisconsin law contains no express authority for municipalities to file for bankruptcy relief
under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code.

Nevertheless, there can be no assurance (a) that State law will not change in the future, while the Notes are
outstanding, in a way that would allow the County to file for bankruptcy relief under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy
Code; or (b) even absent such a change in State law, that an executive order or other executive action could not
effectively authorize the County to file for relief under Chapter 9. If, in the future, the County were to file a
bankruptcy case under Chapter 9, the relevant bankruptcy court would need to consider whether the County could
properly do so, which would involve questions regarding State law authority as well as other questions such as
whether the County is a municipality for bankruptcy purposes. If the relevant bankruptcy court concluded that the
County could properly file a bankruptcy case, and that determination was not reversed, vacated, or otherwise
substantially altered on appeal, then the rights of holders of the Notes could be modified in bankruptcy proceedings.
Such modifications could be adverse to holders of the Notes, and there could ultimately be no assurance that holders
of the Notes would be paid in full or in part on the Notes. Further, under such circumstances, there could be no
assurance that the Notes would not be treated as general, unsecured debt by a bankruptcy court, meaning that claims
of holders of the Notes could be viewed as having no priority (a) over claims of other creditors of the County; (b) to
any particular assets of the County, or (c) to revenues otherwise designated for payment to holders of the Notes.

Moreover, if the County were determined not to be a “municipality” for the purposes of the Bankruptcy Code, no
representations can be made regarding whether it would still be eligible for voluntary or involuntary relief under
Chapters of the Bankruptcy Code other than Chapter 9 or under similar federal or state law or equitable proceeding
regarding insolvency or providing for protection from creditors. In any such case, there can be no assurance that the
consequences described above for the holders of the Notes would not occur.
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FUNDS ON HAND (including investments, as of August 31, 2018)

Fund Amount
Demand and Time deposits $8,741,963
Commercial Paper 8,035,135
Repurchase Agreements 4,000,000
WMMIC Investment Pool 352,783
LGIP 8,729,171
Total Funds on Hand $29,859,052

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Revenues available for debt service on the County's enterprise funds have been as follows as of December 31 each

year:

2015 2016 2017
Highway Department
Total Operating Revenues $ 7,951,463 $ 8,195,349 $ 7,583,572
Less: Operating Expenses (11,720,355) (12,814,750) (13,153,949)
Operating Income $ (3,768,892) $ (4,619,401) $ (5,570,377)
Plus: Depreciation 503,367 560,703 887,857

Revenues Available for Debt Service

Airport
Total Operating Revenues $ 959,608 $ 987,778 $ 1,014,526
Less: Operating Expenses (2,444,812) (2,448,516) (2,327,786)
Operating Income $ (1,485,204) $ (1,460,738) $ (1,313,260)
Plus: Depreciation 1,385,240 1,391,560 1,392,297
Revenues Available for Debt Service $  (99,964) $  (69,178) $ 79,037

$ (3,265,525)
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SUMMARY GENERAL FUND INFORMATION

Following are summaries of the revenues and expenditures and fund balances for the County's General Fund. These summaries
are not purported to be the complete audited financial statements of the County, and potential purchasers should read the included
financial statements in their entirety for more complete information concerning the County. Copies of the complete audited
financial statements are available upon request. See Appendix A for the County's 2017 audited financial statements.

FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31

COMBINED STATEMENT

Revenues
Taxes and special assessments
Intergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Public charges for services

Intergovernmental charges for services

Investment income
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General government
Public safety
Health and human services
Culture, recreation, and education
Conservation and development

Total Expenditures

Excess of rev. over (under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Insurance Recovery
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses

General Fund Balance January 1
Residual Equity Transfer in (out)

General Fund Balance December 31

DETAILS OF DECEMBER 31 FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable
Assigned®
Unassigned
Total

2018
2014 2015 2016 2017 Adopted
Audited Audited Audited Audited Budget®
$20,666,222 $22,367,452 $22,754,604 $ 23,820,036 | $23,217,051
5,010,810 5,632,043 5,405,654 5,507,427 5,541,551
320,502 426,754 472,876 496,373 496,765
735,178 363,105 360,606 364,016 389,810
3,798,280 5,139,440 4,885,287 4,396,365 4,067,879
1,808,627 579,445 589,388 599,243 407,673
92,746 50,020 117,419 163,505 0
1,464,687 757,591 615,066 707,171 709,783
$33,897,052  $35,315,850 $35,200,900 $ 36,054,136 | $34,830,512
$11,977,645 $14,135,774 $14,325,109 $ 12,803,594 = $15,969,373
13,755,155 13,930,748 13,949,353 14,408,068 | 14,664,006
2,269,770 2,740,204 2,671,734 2,837,519 2,917,627
1,637,030 1,852,394 1,689,966 2,209,261 2,509,208
2,568,583 1,253,507 1,113,763 2,007,576 869,742
$32,208,183  $33,912,627 $33,749,925 $ 34,266,018 = $36,929,956
$ 1,688,869 $ 1,403,223 $ 1,450,975 $ 1,788,118 @ $ (2,099,444)
0 0 1,000,000 0 0
0 24,302 0 0 0
(165,942) (165,610) _ (2,574,937) _ (2,115,907) 0
$ (165,942) $ (141,308) $ (1,574,937) $ (2,115,907)| $ 0
$ 1522927 $ 1261915 $ (123,962) $ (327,789)| $(2,099,444%)
12,276,784 13,801,711 15,063,626 14,939,664
2,000 0 0 0
$13,801,711 $15,063,626 $14,939,664 $ 14,611,875
$ 1,362,627 $ 2,332,160 $ 2,166,338 $ 1,897,004
815,318 668,900 633,110 2,099,444
11,623,766 12,062,566 12,140,216 10,615,427
$13,801,711 $15,063,626 $14,939,664 $ 14,611,875

1 The 2017 budget was adopted on November 7, 2017.

to the unassigned fund balance and not spent in 2018.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

LOCATION

The County, witha 2010 U.S. Census population of 98,736, and a current estimated population of 102,816, comprises
an area of 645 square miles and is located approximately 107 miles east of the Minneapolis-St. Paul, Minnesota
metropolitan area.

LARGER EMPLOYERS!

Larger employers in the County include the following:

Estimated No.

Firm Type of Business/Product of Employees
Menard, Inc. Retail 10,000°
Luther Midelfort Mayo Health System  Health care 3,396
Phillips-Medisize Hospital equipment & supplies 1,700
Eau Claire Area School District Elementary and secondary education 1,369
University of Wisconsin-Eau Claire Post secondary education 1,250
Sacred Heart Hospital Health care 1,076
Marshfield Clinic- Eau Claire Physicians and surgeons 943
United Health Group Health insurance 800
Hutchinson Technology Computer storage device manufacturing 750
The County County government and services 609

Source: ReferenceUSA, written and telephone survey (September 2018), Wisconsin Manufacturers Register, and
the Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development.

This does not purport to be a comprehensive list and is based on available data obtained through a survey of
individual employers, as well as the sources identified above. Some employers do not respond to inquiries for
employment data.

Includes corporate headquarters, the distribution center and the East and West stores which are located in the City
of Eau Claire.
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U.S. CENSUS DATA

Population Trend: Eau Claire County

2000 U.S. Census 93,142
2010 U.S. Census 98,736
2018 Estimated Population 102,816
Percent of Change 2000-2010 6.01%

Income and Age Statistics

State of United
County Wisconsin States
2016 per capita income $26,795 $29,253 $29,829
2016 median household income $50,538 $54,610 $55,322
2016 median family income $69,453 $69,925 $67,871
2016 median gross rent $757 $789 $949
2016 median value owner occupied $153,200 $167,000 $184,700
2016 median age 34.0 yrs. 39.1 yrs. 37.7 yrs.
State of Wisconsin United States
County % of 2016 per capita income 91.60% 89.83%
County % of 2016 median family income 99.32% 102.33%
Housing Statistics
County
2000 2016 Percent of Change
All Housing Units 37,474 42,997 14.74%

Source: 2000 and 2010 Census of Population and Housing, and 2016 American Community Survey (Based on a
five-year estimate), U.S. Census Bureau (www.factfinder2.census.gov).

EMPLOYMENT/UNEMPLOYMENT DATA

Average Employment Average Unemployment
Year County County State of Wisconsin
2014 55,402 4.5% 5.4%
2015 55,986 3.8% 4.5%
2016 57,084 3.4% 4.0%
2017 57,758 2.9% 3.3%
2018, August 58,263 2.6% 3.1%

Source: Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development.
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APPENDIX A

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Potential purchasers should read the included financial statements in their entirety for more complete information
concerning the County’s financial position. Such financial statements have been audited by the Auditor, to the extent
and for the periods indicated thereon. The County has not requested the Auditor to perform any additional
examination, assessments or evaluation with respect to such financial statements since the date thereof, nor has the
County requested that the Auditor consent to the use of such financial statements in this Official Statement. Although
the inclusion of the financial statements in this Official Statement is not intended to demonstrate the fiscal condition
of the County since the date of the financial statements, in connection with the issuance of the Notes, the County
represents that there have been no material adverse change in the financial position or results of operations of the
County, nor has the County incurred any material liabilities, which would make such financial statements misleading.

Copies of the complete audited financial statements for the past three years and the current budget are available upon
request from Ehlers.

A-1



EAU CLAIRE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

A-2



@ ClikonLarsonAllen LLP

» CLAconnect.com
CliftonLarsonAllen

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The County Board
Eau Claire, Wisconsin

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of Eau Claire County, Wisconsin (the County) as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

A member of

@ Nexia

International



Board of Directors
Eau Claire County

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Eau
Claire County, Wisconsin as of December 31, 2017, and the respective changes in the financial position
and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and the pension schedules, as referenced
in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The accompanying detailed budgetary
comparison schedules and combining financial statements as listed in the table of contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.



Board of Directors
Eau Claire County

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
July 29, 2018 on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests on its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of County’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the County’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Z%x/&mz%c L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Eau Claire, Wisconsin
July 29, 2018



Bulop Ag "S)usLUB}E]S [BIOUBUIY DPIM-JUSWILIBA0B By} Ul SajIAlOE [BJUSWUISA0B Jo) pajussald uonewloul
JEJIWIS UPMm Spuny [ejuswiuienoB Joj pajuesard uojewlojul sy aiedwod o} [nyasn S| )i ‘sjuswalels
|eIouBLl BPIM-JUBWILIBAOB B} JO Jey} UBY) JOMOLIBU S| SPUNj [BJUSWUIBAOD JO SNOO} 8y} asneoag

‘sjuswalinbas Buroueuy
wiol-Ieau s uswuIanob e Bunenjeas Ul [njesn aq Aew UOlJelIojUl YoNg “Jeak |BOSY SU) JO pus auy) Je
o|ge|IBAR S90IN0SAJ 9|qEpUSdS JO SIOUBIE] UO SE [[9M SB ‘S82IN0S8) 9|qepuads JO SMOJIN0 pue Smopul
WISJ-JESU UO SNO0j SJUSWIDJE)S [BIOUBUY Puny [BJUSWUISACD ‘Sjuswalels |eloueuly apim-juswiuianob
Qy} YIiUN ‘JOASMOH 'SJUBSWSIE}S [BIOUBUL BPIM-JUBLILIBAOD BU} Ul SajAloe [ejuswuianob se papodal
suoIoUNy awes 8y} A||BljUSSS?a 10) JUNODJE O} PESN 818 SPUN} [BJUBWUIBAOS) — SPUNd |BJUSLIUIBA0D

'spuny Aleonpy pue ‘'spuny Atejsdoid
‘spuny |eyuawulanch :sau0ba)es 9aiy) ol PaPIAIP 8q Ued AJunoD 8y} JO Spuny ay} Jo ||y "Sluswannbal
|leBo| pajejel-adueuly UM 20oue||dwod S)eljsuowap pue ainsua o) Buijunodoe pun) sasn ‘sjuswiulanch
[e00| pue @gjeis Jayjo &yl ‘Ajunod ane|) ne3 ‘saaoalqo Jo saniAnoe oyoads oy pejebeibes
u9aq SARY ]BLj} S80IN0S3I JBAO |0JJU0D UIBJUIBLU O} Pasn S| Jey} Sjunodoe pajejal jo Buidnoib e s puny vy

SJuswajels [eloueUl] pung
“podai siy} Jo 91 @Bed uo Bujuuifag punoy 9g UED SUBWSJE)S [BIOUBUL BPIM-JUBWUIBA0E By |

‘Hoduy pue juswpedaq AemybiH
ay) apnpoul Auno) aie|n ne3 jo saljAioe adAl-ssauisng 8yl Juswdo@ASp PuB UOHBAISSUOD pue
'UOIIEONPD PUE UONHESINBI ‘8IN}ND 'SIOIAISS UBWINY pue yjeay 'sxiiom dlgnd :Aiapes oignd ‘juswuianob
leJouab epnour AunoD alle|D) nej jJo SaljAOe  [Bjudwuianob oyl (seniAnoe  adA)-ssauisnq)
sobieyo pue sas) Josn ybnoiyy s)soo soy) jo uoiuod jueoyubls e 1O |je JOAODal 0} papusjul aie
Jey} SUOROUN} JBYJ0 Woly (SaNIAROE [eluswulaA0B) senuanal |ejuswulanobiaul pue saxe) Aq pepoddns
Ajjediound aue yey; AjunoD sy} Jo suoiouny ysinbunsip sjusLwLless [eloueLY apim-Juswuianob ay) Jo yjog

‘(spyauaq anea| pled pasnun Jng pauiea pue saxe) pajos|jooun “Ba) spolad |easy ainny u
SMOJ} YSED Ui }jnsal Ajuo [jim Jey) SWaj Swos Jo} JudWa)e)s Siy} ul papodal e sasuadxe pue senuanal
‘SNy| "SMOJ} Ysed psjeral jo Bujwiy ayy jo ssajpiebal ‘sinooo abueys ayy o} asu Bulaib Juans Buihpispun
8y se uoos se papodal ale uolysod Jau ul sebueyd |y 210z Buunp pabueyo uomisod Jou s,Ajuno) auyy
moy Buimoys uonewioyul sjuasald ‘SafIAo. JO JUSWISILR]S B} ‘JUSWSJE)S SpIM-JusiuIanob puooss ay |

‘Bunesousyep Jo Buinoudw s1 AJuno? ey} 4o uolyisod [EIOUBUL BY) JBYISUM JO SI0}EDIpUI
InJjesn se sAIes Aew uolysod Jou Ul S8sealdep JO S8SEaloul ‘BwWl} JOAQ uolisod jau ayy ul Buynsas
‘$90JN0S81 JO SMOUI PBLIBJSP PUB ‘SORIIGRI| 'S82IN0SBI JO SMOJINO PaLIdep ‘sjasse sAuno) ale|n
Ne3 JO ||e Uo UoijeuLIOUl Sjuesald ‘Woisod Jau JO JuaWaje)s ay} ‘JUSLISIE}S BPIM-JudWUIBA0B Jsiy By

‘ssauIsnq
10)09s 9jeAud B 0] JejWIS JBUUBW B Ul ‘S8oueuly SAUNOD BU} JO MBIAIGAO PEOIQ B UM Sidpesl
apinold 0) peubisap ole ‘SJUSLLSIE}S OM] JO JSISUOD YOIUM 'SJUSLUISIE]S [BlOUBUY SpIM-JuswuLIanob ay |

SJUBW9je}S [eIdUBUl] OPIM-JUSWIUIBA0D

"SOA|ISWaY) SIUBWISIEIS
|e1oueUly DISEq 8y} 0} UOIPPE Ul UolewIojl Alejuswa|ddns J8yjo Sulejuod osje Jodal siy| Sjuswalels
|e1ouBUlY By} 0) SOJOU (E PUB ‘SJUBLISIEIS [BIOUBUY puny (Z ‘SJUBWSJE)S [elouBul BpIM-juawulanob (|
:sjusuodwiod saly) Jo pasudwos ele Sjuswale)s [eloueuy diseq s AUNOD BY)  'SJUBWIES
|eoueuly 2I1Seq S,AUNOD 8y} 0} UOHONPOJIUI UE SB SAJSS 0} Papudiul s| SISA[EUE pue uoissnosip sIy|

SININZILVLS TVIONVNIL FHL 40 MIIAUIAO
2102 ‘1€ ¥38W303A 3ANT ¥V3A

SISATVNY ANV NOISSNOSIA S LNJNIDOVNVIA
NISNOOSIM ‘ALNNOD J¥IV10 NV3

‘Jodie ay) je s)osse |eyded uo uoljessidap
0} anp Auewud sem yolym 'Gz0'c8/$ 4O uopisod Jou ul SSEaId8p B YUM /0Z Paysiuy uodily e
‘sieah snoiaaid Ul uey) 9o1d JOMO| B Je PEOJ JO S3|IL SUE|
2JowW JonJsuod 0} AJunod ay) pamojje sey ABojouyod) Je-ay)-jo-alels Jo uonejuswaldw| “Jeah s|qels
e Buneoipul ‘vgl'/Z1$ 10 uolyisod Jau Ul asealoul Ue YIm /L0Z paysiuy juswpedaq AemybiH oyl e

10 sjuawAed a21AIaS 1Op PBINPAYDS AQ J9SHO0 1OM Jgap Ul 8SE8IOUl dY ] "UOI||IW G/ 6$ JO Junowe ay}
ul 'y/10zZ seleg 'seloN Alossiwold uonebiiqo |eseuss) panss| juswuianob Aewud sfjuno) sy =
‘saJnyipuadxa puny |esauab |ejo} Jo %86°0F 10
‘voljjiw 901 $ sem puny jeseusb ay) 1oy soueljeq punj paubisseun ‘JeaA [BOs]) JUBLIND dY) JO PUS AU} JyY  ©
‘uoyiw |°e$ Jo puny sysloid |eyded ay) Ul asessosp
B pue §8/'/ge$ 4O puny jesausb ay) jo synsal [euoiielado sy} Sem 9sEaI09p By} 4O Juduodwod
Aiewnd ay| “1eaA Joud ay} 0} uosiedWOD Ul UOIIW }'€$ JO 9SEDI0RP B 'UOl|IW 6°9L$ JO S8oueleq
pun} Buipus pauiquiod pspodal spuny [EJuaWUIBA0B s,AunoD By} ‘Jeak |BOsl) By JO SSO|D BYl Iy e

‘BUIBUNOIDE JO SISE] |ENIOOR PALJIPOW PUB SNO04 JUSWINSESW S92IN0SaI [BIOUBUIY JUSLIND auy) Buisn
spuny jueoyiubls Jsow s,AuUnoD By} JN0ge UOHEWIOUl pajielap apiAoid SjusWalels [B1ouBUY PUn) ayL

SJUSWISIElS [EIoUen|d pund 10} SIUBIUBIH

‘AlaAoadsal ‘000'85.$ paseaioap AJunod ay) Jo
salAnoe adA}-ssauisng pue uol|jiw 9'9¢ AQ pasesoap saljiAloe [ejuawuIanol ay) o} pajejal uonisod
1N "uow '2$ AlRyewnxoidde Agq paseaiosap uopisod jau (B30} S AUN0D oY) ‘Jeak [eosy ay) Buung e

"SI0)IpaJo puUe suaziio o} suolebiqo Bulobuo s juswulanob ayj J@aw o} pasn oq
ARew uopisod Jou pajolIsaIUN BY| "PajolIsalun Sem Uol|iw ' 0Z$ pue ‘sesodind pejolsal Joj pey
SEM UOI[IW ¥ p$ ‘s}esse [ejide ul JuswisaAu] Jau s Alunod ay) pajussaldal uoliw £'60L$ ‘unowe
sy} JO (uomsod 18u) 2102 ‘L€ Jeqwavaq Jo Se siSeq apm-juswuianob B uo uoliw | ¥eiL$ Aq
SMO|JUl pa1Iajap PUB Saljljigel| S}l PAPaaoXd S2IN0SAI JO SMOJIN0 PALISJSp pue sjesse sAlunoD ayl e

*BuuN0oooe. O SISE] |ENJOOE PUE SNO0) JUSWSINSE3W SIIINOSAI JILOU0DS
ay) Buisn ajoym e se AJunoD 8y} JNOGE UOHBWIOoUI Jodal Sjuswalels [eloueul apim-juswuianct ay

SJUoWa)e)§ |e1oueul] opPIM-JUSUISACS) 10} SIUBIUBIH

S1HOIMTHOIH TVIONVNId

'Aluno) 8y} Jo salAloe adA)-ssauisng 3y} PUB SalIANIE [ejuswulianob
8y} Yjog uo uopjewlojul SpiAcid [ UISISY PBUIBJUOD UOIBWIOUI BU) ey} pajou aq 0s|e p|noys
1] "aAneseu siy} Buimolioy 9| abed uo uibag uoiym ‘sajou BulAuedwoooe ay) pue sjusweSle)s |eloueuly
s,AJUN0D 8y} yIm uoiouN[uOD Ul peas 8q PINOYS UOoaS SIYL “L10Z ‘L€ Joquaoe papua Jeak ay) o)
AunoD ane|D ne3 Jo saljIANDE [eIoUBUY BU) JO SISAJEUB PUB MBIAISAO SAJBLIBU SIY] SJUSLLSJE]S [elouBul
sAlunoD 8y} jo siapeas Jago em ‘(AJUNOD 8ul) UISUOISIAA ‘AunoD aue|) ne3 jo Juswabeuew sy

2102 ‘1€ ¥3aW303Q d3AN3 ¥VIA
SISATVYNVY ANV NOISSNISIA S.LNIWIOVNVIN
NISNOOSIM ‘ALNNOD 3¥IV1O NV3

A-6



‘saljIAloe 8dA)-SSOUISNG PUE SBIIAIOE [BJUSWIUIBAOE BU} J0j PUE S|OUM B SE JuslUIaA0B
ay) Joj ‘uoiysod Jau Jo selobajes 8aly) || Ul seouejeq aAlsod pepodal AunoD 8y} ‘L0z 4O puUd 8y} iy

'SJO}IPaI0 pue suszyo 0} suolebiiqo Buiobuo s Aunod sy} Jeaw o} pash aq Aew

SOLTRY'TPL $  Z98/IT'PEL $  1GI'G8B'OY $  6/9'0710v $  pIOBESOOL §  EST'IBGEE S uonIs0d 12N [e30L
€5C'S0L'ST €8Y'7S5v0C v£9'187'S S9B'LET'S 645'€er’0C 819'91C'ST pawpisaiun
68'7T6°E STE'B8EY . 6v8'ZT6'E STE'BBE'Y panisay
£€99'998'TT1 $90'5£2'60T LL9°E09'SE P18'888'VE 98T'€92'9L 057'98€ 7L 51955V [eHdED Ul JUaWISIAU| 1IN
:uoIlIs0d 13N
£59'€65'LE T9TLYELE £64116' U618 098°579'VE 680'815E 5321053y 40 SMO4U] PaLI2}3Q
£5v'7T0'20T 508'965 V0T STY'E87'9 TT0'60% 8€0'T€L'S6 S6LL8€'00T 1qen (1oL
868'89L'T8 8191608 P97 'PBE'E 091°00t°2 PEQ'VE'RL 8Sp'T15'8L sanijiqen wia)-8uo]
ST6'THE'S €8T'/8L°0T 9¥0'SrL 008'€8L 6£8'965'8 €8E'E00°0T B34 BUQ UIYIIM 3Na sa1I[iger] wiaL-Buo]
. 0Ly's65'T 686'TLT A T8Y'€ETY'T Aupigen uoisuad 1aN
0£9'E06'0T SES'ZOV'TT SOT'9S1°Z 290'€56 S2s'6hL'8 €LY'6tY'0T S3131]1qe 1] 3u3LND
819'558'LT 819'/65°CT £85'190'C STY'0TE'T T60'%6L'ST £61'LLTTT 5304N0S3Y JO MOIANQ PaLI243Q
€6T'LEL'EIT TIE'¥95'€9T 2LL750'8Y LEY'TYE'SY 12v'281'51Z PLB'61'LTT $}assy [e10L,
C - 8L7T6T 169'881 (822762) {£69'881) sadueleg jeusaiul
725'8L0'€6T BET'IST'S6T 608'SEE'3E TISTH9'LE €TL'T0LPST £29'885'4ST 1355y [e310e)
TL98ST'OL $  ELT'EBE'BY $ S89Ty's  $  6ZZEII'® $ 98GOEL03 $  pv6'e9z09 $ S1955Y 13430 pue WILND
910z 1102 910 10z 910C £10C
|e3oL $9NIAIDY adAL-ssauisng SBIHAIDY [RJUBWUIAACD

:uoiysod
J8U Jo Juawalels s Aunod ayj Jo Arewwns e st Buimolio) sy ‘sanijiqel| asay) aiepinbi| 0] pasn ag jouued
sanlasway) sjesse |ejides ay} aouls ‘saounos Jayjo woyy papiaoid g jsnw jgap siy) Aedas o) papasu
$80UN0SaI By} Jey) pajou aq pinoys }i ‘1gep pajejal Jo 1ou papodal si sjosse [ejded s ul JuswisaAul
s AQunod ay) ybnouyy ‘Buipusds aunyny 1oy SjgejieAR Jou Sie Ssjasse asay) ‘Ajuenbasuod suazio
0) sa0IAas apinocld 0) sjesse |ejdeo asay) sasn AjunoD a8yl ‘Bulpuelsino |is Sl ey} sjesse asoy)
a1nboe 0} pasn jgap pajeje) Aue pue uopedaldap jo Jdu ‘(sinjonujsequl pue ‘Juswdinba pue Alsulyoew
‘syjuswanoidwi pue sbulping ‘pue| “B'a) siesse [eyded ul juswisaAul sH sjosal (%0'L8) uomsod
Jau s,Alunog alie) neq jo uoiod jsabie| ay| “Jeak [eosy ayj Jo 8s0|0 Ay} Je uoljiw | gL $ Aq saaunosal
JO SMOJjuUI Pallojap pue Saplligel] Papasdxa SMOWINO paudjep pue sjesse ‘Aluno) allg|y ne3 Jo
ased ay) Ul ‘uopisod [eloueul SUSWUISA0D B JO J0JedIpul [Njasn B Se Wi} JaAo aAases Aew uoiysod JoN

3TOHM ¥V SV ALNNOD JHL 40 SISATVNY TVIONVNIJ

‘e9 abed uo suibaq uoposs
uofjewdoyu) Aejuswsalddns Jayio siy] "uolisod jau jo Juswaleys Buuiquiod puny Aousbe ue pue spuny
|eyuswulancb Jofewuou ay) 1o} sjuswalels Buluiquod sapnjoul uojewlojul Aejuswsiddns ey “podal
sIy} Jo ped se papinoid usaq sey uoneunojul Aejuswsiddns [euopippe ‘uociewlou) Aejuswayddns
pasinbai pue ‘sajou BulAuedwoooe ‘sjuawale)s [BIDUBUY puny pue spim-juswuienohb oiseq ay) Buimojjo

‘podai siy3 jo g5 abed uo Bujuuibaq punoy aq
ues uoijewlojul Asejuswsiddns pasinbay "sainpayds uoisuad ay) uo ucnew.ojul Aleyjusws|ddns palinbas
ulepao sjuasaid podal siy} ‘sejou Buifuedwodde pue SjuswWwSle]S [BlouBuly OISeq 8} 0} UOIIPPE uj

uonewnoju] Aejuawajddng

2102 ‘1€ ¥39IN303A GIANT ¥VIA
SISATVNY ANV NOISSNISIA S.LNJWIOVNVIAN
NISNOOSIM ‘ALNNOD J¥IVIO NV

‘yodal siy3 Jo 2z abed uo Bujuuibag punoy aq ueod sajou ay |

'S)USWIAJE]S [BIDUBUY PUN) Pue Spim-juswuiancb au) ul papiaoid eyep ay}
puejsiapun Ajnj 0} [BIJUSSS® SI Jey} UOHREWLOUI [BUOHIPPE BpIAcId SjUBLISIE)S [BIDUBUY B} O} S8j0U 8y |
SJUdW)e)S |eIoueUl] 9y} O} SOJON

‘Wodal sy} Jo gz abed uo punoj ag Ued JUSWS)E)S |eloueUl puny Alejonpy dIseq 8y |

‘Bunjunosoe Jo siseq [enIdde U} PUB SN0 JUSWSINSESW SA2IN0SAI JIUOU0DS aU) :spun) Alejalidoid
10} Pasn jey} 3yl yonw si spuny Aseionpy Joy pasn Bununoooe ay| ‘sweiboid umo s Aunog ay} poddns
0} 9|gB|IBAR JOU DIB SPUN} 9SO} JO SOJIN0SAI BY} 9SNEOdq SJUSWSIE]S [BIOUBUY SPIM-JUSWIUISA0H
8y} Ul pajosjel jou ale spuny AJBlonpl4 ‘ainjeu Ul [eIpo}SnO die 0 JuswuiaAoB ay) apisino saiued
JO JyBuaq 8y} Joj Ishu} Ul p|dy S80IN0SaJ IO} JUNOJJE O} pasn ale spuny Alepnpi4 - spund Ateionpig

‘Hodai s1y} jo £z abed uo Buiuuibag punoj aq ues sjuswalels [eloueuly puny Aejaldold oiseq ay |
‘sjuswiale)s [eoueuly puny Asejeudold au) Jo uonejuasald sy uIyIM PapNIoUl S| pUN) 82IAISS [BUISIUI BY |

*AJUN03 8U} Jo spuny Jolew palapisuod Yjoq ‘Wodlly pue juswpedaq AemybiH
ay) Joj uonewuoyul sjesedas apinoud sjuawalels |eroueuy puny Aiejaudosd oy jieyep asow ul Ajuo
‘syuswwale)s [eroueul spim-juswulanob ayy se uonewloyul jo adA} awes ay) apiroid spuny Aiejaridold

'SJUBLWI).)S [BIOUBUY SPIM-JUBILISA0BG By} Ul SBNIAIIOE [BJUSLIUIBAOB BU} UlY)M papn|oul uaad aAey
Aayy ‘suonouny adA)-ssauisng UBY} JoUjel |ejuswwuISA0B Jyauag Ajueuiwopald sadIAI9S 9say) 9snesag
"SaNIAIJOE JusWwabeuew YSH S} J0) JUNOJOE O} PuUN} SDIAISS [BUJSIUI UB SIsN AJUnoD dJle|) neg "suolnouny
snoueA sAunod ay) Buowe Ajjeulajul S)SOD 9)ed0|e pue Bje|NWNOoe 0} pasn adjasp Bujunoooe
ue 2Je spuny 82IAI9S jeusalu| ‘podily pue juswpedsq AemybiH auj JOo SSNIAOE |BOS SY) 10} JUNOJOE 0)
spuny asudiajue sasn AJUNoD ayL "SUSWSIE]S [elouBUY apIM-JuswuIanob ay) ul sanaioe adAl-ssauisng
se pajussaid suolouny awes ay} yodas 0] pasn aie spuny asudielug ‘Spun} SJIAIBS |BUJRIUl puE
spuny asudiajus spuny Aejaudold jo sadA) Juaiayip om) suleluiew Aunog alie|d ne3 'spuny Alejondold
ul papodal aie apiroid 0} 394 e s1awo)snd sabieyd Aluno)d ay) Yoiym Joy sa8o1aeg — spund Asejeridoad

‘podal siy} Jo gz 9bed uo BuluuiBag puNoy 8g UED SJUBWIES [BIOURUY [SAS] PUNy By L

‘podal siy)
Ul 819ymas|a sjuswale)s BuluIqwod Jo wioy 8y} ul papiaosd si spuny [eyuswulancb Jofew-uou asay} Jo
yoes 1oj Blep puny [enpiaipu| “uonejuasaid pajyebaibbe ‘s|fuis B ojul pauiquiod aie spuny |ejuswulsAch
oAy JaYlo sy} woy ejeq ‘spuny Jolew aq O} paJBPISUOD Ble ydIYm JO |e ‘spung sjosfoid [exded
puB ‘@dIAIBS 199 'S9OIAIRS UBWNH ‘|eJauss) 8y} Joj sadueleq puny ul sabueyo pue ‘sainypuadxa
'SONUBADI JO JUSWSIE)S pun} [eJUSWUIOAOB By} Ul PuB Jodys SOUBRq punj [BlusWUIBA0B ay)
u A|9jeledas pajussald s UOIEWIOU| "SPUN} [EJUSLLUIBAOB [ENPIAIPUI BUIU Sulejulew Ajuno) alle|d ne3

‘SaljIAloe |ejusWwUIanob pue spunj |ejuswiuianob usameq uosiedwoo
S|y} S)ey|Ioe} 0] uopneliouodss B apiacid saoueleq puny ul sabueyd pue ‘sainypusdxe ‘sanuansl
JO JUBWASlBIS pun} [BlUBWUIBACB By} pue }eays aduejeq punj |ejuswulanob ay) yjog suoisioap
Buloueuy wisl-lesu sjuswuiancb ay) jo jpedwi wis)-buol sy} puejsiopun lopaq Aew slapeal ‘0s

2102 ‘L€ ¥39N303A A3AN3 ¥YIA
SISATVNY ANV NOISSNISIA S.INFJWIOVNVIN
NISNOOSIM ‘ALNNOD J¥IV10 Nv3

A-7



sesudtxI M SanuaAZY WeiSold

s3gley) wawdo|ansq uonenp3 pue EESTNCE JUBWUIBA0G
[BSH OUE 153133U[  PU2 UCIJBAIBSUOD UOIJEAIIaY DINT NI UEUNMH FUB Yl[BaH  SY.OA DG d Argpes aqnd |E1RURD
=1 =, o - = == .

- n 000°000'55
000C00"0TS
000°C00°STS
000°C00'07$
000°000'5T$
0000008 S
000°C00'SES
000'000'07'$
000°000'5Y$

£T0Z S8NIAIIY [BIUBLIUIBACDH-SBNUBASY WeiSold pue sasuadx3y

saxe] JaIg e 5axXe] ALISdO)] @ SUONNQUINOD PUE S1LRIG felde) ¥ SUONNQUIUD) pue Sluplg Sunesado @ 5301135 10; safley) w

LTOTZ-S31UAII0Y |PIUBWIUIBACD-20UN0S AQ sanuanay

(%05 2€) suoipnquiuod/syuelb Bunessdo pue ‘(% 1¢°6) S921AI9S 104 Sobleyd ‘(%0 'Gg) soxe) Auadoid
aJe $301AI8S |ejuswulaAch Buipuny 1o} $80.N0S UlBW $,AlUNOY) SY) SSI)IAOE |BJUSWILIBACE JO4 "S3IjIAIIOR
10 Juawaje)s ay) woly eyep melp sPeyd Buimojjo) ay] ‘pepuny ase Aunod auy) jo swesboid/suonouny
snouea 3y} moy jo ainjoid osipuod B apiacid UBD SIIAOE JO JUSWAIEIS BU} JO MBIARI Y

£10Z ‘L€ ¥3EINIO3A IANT ¥VIA
SISATVNY ANV NOISSNOSIA S.INJWIDVNVIN
NISNOOSIM ‘ALNNOD JAIV1O NV

20T'E0E  $ (206'99€'2)$  OeT'ese'TS  (cuv'sss) $ (810'050'T) S (0E¥'B099)S uon|sod 18N ul adueyd
- 958'596 TLE'698 (958'596) (TLE'698) s1gjsuel]
20T'€08 (z06'99€ L) V9218 (ev8'229'T)  (z91'v8) {650'6€LS) SI9jsueLy 310499 UOR SO I3N U} dTuey)
ITT'EVT 6 T00968°20T  29TT0Z'ST  86L°G59°ST  ¥S6'TE'9L £07'0V2'L8 sasuadxy jeyoy
ELE'GEL'TT 9TT6CET €L€'6EL'CT  TOT'T6CEL - AemysiH
68LT9%'C 9€979E'Z 68LT9V'T 9E9PIE'T > uodiy
66'6TF'T 0EELTTZ 5 6€6'6T1'T OEELTT'T 2210953990
0LE'PIT'T S9€TTET = 0LE'9T'T S9E'TTET 1UBWdO|3A3Q PUE UOIIEAIBSUCD
9ZEOTE'T 6615019 5 9TEOTET 661'S0T°9 uoReINp3 pue UORL3IIY ‘31NN
0€9'EES VE vLTv850r 5 OF9'EES ¥E PLTYBSOF $30|A13S UBLUNH PUB Y3[eaH
9LT'0LY'S SY6°0LS'y 5 9LT0LY'S SP6'0LS Y SHOM 2lIgnd
06Z'¥S8'ST vL1T8Y'91 = 062758'ST PLTT8YST Aagesoiang
£2TBLY'ST 9T6'250°ST - €226LY'ST 916'£50'ST JUBWUIBA0D [eI3URY
1sasuadx3
8129vY'76 66067556 9Ty'88S'ST  SS6°LTOYT  T6L'LSB'L vyTT05T8 S3NUaA3Y [e10L
£909(8 80€ 691 OvT8T 972'81C €26'/58 780'TST J3y10
08091 S56019°C 2 = 0£8°09% §56°019°C sweudoud oypads o1
Pa10L1s3Y 10N SPIY [eJapad pue lels
STT'BTE'ET TE8'S9STT . ¥ STT'6E‘ET TE8'SISTT soxel 1910
950°5T0°6¢ SOLYTLOE vL6T8T'T ¥8L'6ST'T 780'7€8'9C TZ6'VSS'8T saxe] Apadoig
iS2NUBABY |eJ2UaD
950'€89'T PEE'99E Yr1'586 2 16°269 VEE'99E SU0IINGUIL0D pue sjuelp jedde)
00601892 756'0€8EE 18TL€2°E €002 6TL°ELSET 6£8095°0€ suonnqLIu0) pue siuess ujiesado
8YI'T/Z0CS  YIOTLE'STS  (86'%9T'6S  T/B'6LE®S  TOT'9OT'ITS  THT'T6SL $ 5301135 40y sa8leYD
153nUBdABY WeJSold
SanuaAay
9107 £T0C 910C £10C 9102 1700
BEE sanIANoY 2dAL-ssauisng S3NIARY [BIUBWIUIBACD

:uosod jau s Aluno) ayy ul ssbueys ay) jo Alewwns e si Buimolio) sy

'000'85.2$ 4O Junowe sy} ui saaloe adAy-ssaulsng o} pajelal uonisod
JoU U] 9SB8I08p B PUB UOIHW 9'g$ JO JUNOWE dy} Ul SBIIAIE [ejuswuianob o} pejejas uopyisod jau ul
©SB8I08P B JO PAJSISU0D BSeaI0ap ay| Jeak |eosy jJuauna ay) Buunp uoyiw ' 2¢ Aq pesessoap uomsod
jou (€10} S,AlUNDD By} Jey} SMOYS SMO||0) Se uonsod Jau ul sabueyd Jo Juswalels pasuspuod ay|

2102 ‘1€ ¥39IW3030 A3ANT ¥V3A
SISATVNY ANV NOISSNOSIA S.LNIWIOVNVIN
NISNOOJSIM ‘ALNNOD JHIVIO NV

A-8



“Uoljiiw G'L$ PSSESIIBP PUN) AU} Jo
uoipod poubisseun ay} pue Jeak ayy Buunp 000‘8zZE$ Pesesloap douejeq puny [ejo} s,puny [eiausb ay |

‘Junowe sWes Jeu} JO %9’ 2y
pejuasaidal eouejeq puny [BJ0} 8y} SjIym ‘sainjipusdxa puny [esouab [B)0} JO %86°0E Pajussaldal
aoueleq puny paubisseun "senusAsl puny 10 sainjipuadxa puny se yons awnjoa Bunesado jo sainseaw
0} @0UBlRqQ pUN} [B}O} PUEB BdUBjRq puny paubisseun By} uloq a1edwod o} jnjesn aq Aew ) ‘Ajpinbi|
s,puny [eJauab ay o @INSEBW B Sy "UOI|IW Q'L $ SBM SoUBleq puny [B}o} SlIum ‘Uoliw 9'0L$ Sem puny
|esouab ay} jo @oue|eq puny paubisseun sy} ‘10z ‘L€ Jeqwadaq jo sy “AjunoQ alie|) ned Jo suolesado
|ejuswulanob ay} 1o} Junoooe o} pasn puny Buiesado Atewnd sy} si puny [erousb ay) :pun- [eisuss

"SUOIBIIISSED JOYJ0 BU) Ul paulejuod jou sjunowe s|qepuads

|le sapnjoul pue puny |ejauab s AunoD By} Joj UCKEDISSEID [ENPISA) dY) SI 9ouBeq pun) paubisseun
‘pleog Aluno) sy} Aq paystigelsa Aoijod yum

20ueploode Ul Aoyne yons asiolaxa o) pajebsiep Apoq Jo uosiad swos Ag Jo yasy Apoq juawuidnob
8y} Aq jes esodind e Joy Buipuads o} papusiul sa0inosal sjuasaidas soueleq pun) paubissy
‘saiped apisino Aq pajouysal Ajjebs) si pue

asn oyoads e 1oy papuaiul Ing uoneudoidde 1o} 8|qejieAR sjunowe sjuasaidal adue|eq pun) pajoLsey
‘pouad Jua.iind ay} Joaye 0} ybnous UCOS YSED 0} PSLDAUOD 8 JOU [|IM IO YSED 0} POUSAUOD 8] JaAau
1I!m Jey) syesse Jo ajgepuadsuou Ajuaiayul aie jey} sjunowe sjussaidal adsuejeq punj ajgqepuadsuon

(z€6'8/€'€)S  208'1€6'9TS  §89'722'8 S 9SL°90P'TS  8¥6'00E'YS  €I¥'/00T S Seduejegpung|eiol

08L'0LC £50°968 (t12'sy) TIEL0E 756'9€9 spuny anuanay |enads
spund Jofewuon
(8Tz'Tvt’e) (zer'vee'e) (zer'vez'e) pund sypafoid [eyde)
(s0L'6LT) 966'€99'€ 966'€99°€ pung 21A18S 1990
= ® {60r‘0TT) 6070TT pun4 s331035 UBWNH
(68L°2z€) $  S/8TIOPTS  [TV'ST9OLS  vhv'6607$ p00'L68T S puny {eiausn
spung Jolepy
Jeaj suung |exol pausisseun paud|ssy panuIsay 3|gepuadsuoN
adueyd £TOT "TE Jaquiadaq e aduejeg pun4

:MOJaq UMOUS BJe a0uB[eq
spuny |ejuswuIaA0b 8y ‘Jeak Joud 8y} 0) UOSLEdWOD Ul UOHIW $'E$ JO SEaI0sp B ‘UoI|iw 6'9L$ JO
saoue(eq pun} Buipue peuiquod papodal spuny [Bjuswuianob s Aunod auy ‘L0z ‘L€ Jequiada( Jo sy

‘1eah |Bosl) 8y} 0 pua Y} Je Buipuads 10} S|E|IBAR S22.N0SAI JBU S JuswuIaAob
B JO ainseaw |njosn e se aAes Aew aoueleq puny paubisseun ‘Jenoiued uj ‘sjuswaiinbas Buoueuy
ay) Buissasse ul |NJoSN 8q UED UOIBWIOJUI YONG 'S80IN0Sal ajgepuads JO SSOUBEq PUB SMO|HN0
‘SMojjul wisl-ieau Buipiebal uopew.ou; apiacid 03 s spuny [Ejuswuidanol s Alunod 8y} Jo snooj 8yl

Spung [eJUBWIUISA0D

‘sjuswalinbal |eba|
pajejal-aoueuly Ypm 2oueljduwiod SJes)SUOWSp pue ainsud o} Bununoooe puny sesn Aunod ale|) nej

SANN4 ¥OrviNl SLALNNOD JHL 40 SISATVYNV TVIONVNIY
2102 ‘1€ ¥39INTOIA AIANT AVIA

SISATYNVY NV NOISSNOSIA S.ANIJWNIDOVYNVIN
NISNOOSIM ‘ALNNOD 3NIVIO NV3

sasuadxim  Sanusnzy

AemuBiH oy

s ]
000'000°¢S
000'000'7S
000'000'05
00000085
000°000°0T$
00000021

000°000%TS

/707 s2131A110y adA]-ssauisng-sanuanay weidold pue sasuadx]

By w  sexelAUSTOId®  SJORNQINUD) PUE SLIEID (1D & 103 puE SWeID TUNEISCO @ SB2IAIBS 10§ <BIPY) =

£TOT san1Anay adA)-ssauisng-80.nos Aq senuanay

‘anuaAal Asewud ay) se saxe) Apadoud aoejdal (% /. 6G) Se2IMBS
Joj sebieyn "sinjoid Jualayip A|QeISPISUOD B SMOUS BJep au) ‘saljianoe adA)-ssauisng ay) Jo 9Sed ayj u|

2102 ‘1€ ¥3EIN303A A3ANT ¥v3A
SISATVYNY ANV NOISSNOSIA S.LNIJWIOVNVIN
NISNOOSIM ‘ALNNOD JHIV10 NY3

A-9



‘suonesado Aemybly 104 oses| [eyded e 0} Ajuewnd sajejal uoliw z'g$ Buluiewal
ay] ‘seniAnoe |eluswuIaAob 10} S| JUNOLWE SIY} JO Uoljiw §'88% ‘'£10Z ‘L€ Joquasaq jo se Buipuelsino
suonebiqo wie}-buo| JaYl0 pue sejou pue spuoq uonebliqo [e;auab ul uolw £ 16$ PEY Aunod eyl

SUONEDIGQ W -BuG

‘S)uDIBIE)S
|eloueuy ayy Jo ‘g’z ©J0N Ul papodas s| sjesse [ejded s,Aunod ay) 0) paje|al UOHEWLIoMI |eUOINPPY

T7S'8/0'E6TS  BET'IRT'S6LS  GOB'SEE'BES  TIS'CVO'LES  ETLTWLVSTS  [T9'8ESYSTS [e10L
V'YSL 9L 2/8'€58°08 , 9Vb'ySL9L /8'e58°08 aanpnaselyul Aemysiy
261°85€'6 6171907 99€°78EL ¥9C'€eT'8 978'SL6'T 876'88Y'T uawdinb3 pue Asaulyden
859'VEE'T8 889°7/T'6L TE6LYBBT £29'000'8T 92£'98Y'79 $90'2L2'19 sjuawancidw] pue sgu
SvE0/9'T 1£96'880' = = SYE0L9'T 196'882°C sa|qidueiu|
£5899%'TT LBE'EI0'TT €TL0LE8 L€L'18LL THTOPTE 099'T82'€ syuswanoidwi puey
:uonepaidag 01393{gng
€V2TTY WLT18C 967'7v9'T S8E'96S'T 1V6'9LS'T 9SE'912'T §524804d Ul }OM UCIINASUOD
T8L'TLe'8 S T8T'LLTB S TOSOVTT $ COSOVIC S 6LZTET9 $  6LLI9ET9 S $1y31y puet pue puel
:uopeaidaq o3 Palgns 10N
910¢ £107 910C 4102 910C L107
sje3oL SaHAIY 90AL-ssaulsng SNIAIDY [€1UBLIUISA0D

:MOjaq UMOYs Se ‘AjaAioadsal ‘uoy|liw 9' €S PUE UOIIW G'LGL$ 0} pajunowe /,0g ‘L€ Jequada(] Jo se
salpAloe adAj-ssauisng pue SallAoe [BjusWUISA0B S}l 10} sjesse [ejdeD u) JuBW)SaAU] Jau S AUnoD syt

51858y [ended

'gg abed uo suibaq pun4 |essuac) ay) 10) [ENJOY PUB
jobpng-aouejeg pun4 ul sabueyy pue sainjipuadxy ‘sanuanay JO JUBWaERIS 8y} Jo uoneussald ||} v

18pun 000'298$ juswdojana(] @ UORBAISSUOD e
Japun 000'S8$ JUSWIUIBAOL) [BIBUSD)  »

:salnjipuadx3y
1an0 000'926$ xe] sojeg Ajunoy e
S9NUBASY

:8pn[oul seoueleA ay) 0} BuingUiu0D SWwaj
Jueoyubls 1S0W BY1 "000'QZES JO SOUBIEY PUN) Ul 8SEBIOSP [BNJOE U} PUB Q0'CE9$ JO Soueleq puny
J0 asn psjebpng sy} usamjag 000'GOSS 4O SoueLEA SAlSOd JoU B Ul paynsal sIy| uoljiw |'g$ Jo o
siajsueJ} pajebpnqun aiem aiay) “sesnypuadxe pejebpnq [euly sy UeY} JOMO| UOIIW 9'L$ SEM YOIym
'81.0'99Z'vE$ 21om sainypuadxa [Enjo. [euly 8y} S)lYMm anuaal pajebpng jeuy sy} uey) 193eaib 000'c98%
2JaM YoIym ‘9€1'$S0'9E$ d1em s80in0s Buloueul JBYI0 PUB SBNUSBASI [BNJOE [eul} BYL pun [BJauss

‘apew 8q ueo sjuswpuawe Jabpng ‘}ebpng [euiBLo ayy ul pajedionue a1em Jey) spuny Buiaieoal
jou 10 pajebpng Ajjeubuo jou spuny jo 1disoa) 8y} S LINS ‘S|ge|leAB SSWO0D3] UOREWIOMI [eUOIHpPE
se ‘Jeak sy} JnoybnoJy | "ainypuadxs Jo [9AS] [BUOHOUNY BY} JE Spuny ||e 1o} }9Bpng e sydope Auno) syl

SLHOITHOIH AYV1390Na ANNd TVYANIO
2102 ‘L€ ¥39N303a a3ANI YVIA

SISATVYNY ANV NOISSNISIA S.LNJWIOVNVIN
NISNOOSIM ‘ALNNOD JAIVIO NV

w g8'L$ 0} 000'L6ES
paseasoap puny 90IAIeS [BulSlUl 8y} 10} uoiysod Jau ejeBaibbe sy ‘/10Z U| 'Spun{ 80IA8S el

Spung 851A18g [euiaju]

‘Hodire ay} je sjosse
|endes uo uonerdaidap 0} enp Ajewnd sem aseaioap ay| "uoljjiw §'62$ 0} 000'€8/$ Peseasosp podie
8y} Joj uosod Jau sy} ‘/ LOZ U] "Hodiie s,Alunod 8y} Jo suoijeiado 8y} suleluod puny Jodile ay) podiy

'000°221$ Jo seak joud
3y} wouy aseasoul ue s| uolsod Jdu [ejo) "uoliw L'0L$ payoeal uonisod Jau [B10} SlIYM ‘uoljiw | $$
sem Aemybiy ay} jo uonisod Jou pajoLsaIun ‘Jeak (ISl JuaLNd By} JO pud By} Jy "SIUN |ejusIuISA0h
[ED0| PUB ‘UISUODSIAA JO 9)elS 8y} ‘Ajunod 8y} 0} papiroid SIDIAISS PSJE[D) PUEB UOIONJSUOD pue
S0UBUS)UIEW PEOJ JOJ JUNOOOE O} puny juswiedap Aemybiy auy sasnh Aunod ay) Juswpedsq AemybiH

'168°G59$ JO 95EI09P B UOI||IW 6°6ES PAIBIO £LOT 4O PUS BU) Je spun}
Aejoudosd adAj-esudisius ay) Jo uolsod JouU |BJO} DY} ‘JBIlJEd UMOYS SY 'SJUSWSJE)S |elouBul 3pim
-juswuidnob sy} ul punoy uolewlojul Jo adA) awes ay) apiaosd spuny Aueysudold s Auno) alle|) neg

Spung asidiajug - SaNiANoY adA-ssaujsng

“1eaA Joud 8y} 0} uosedwod Ul 000"} 22$ 40 asealoul
UB ‘000'968$ SEM Spun} 9say) JO Soue(Eq PajeNWNIde 3y} ‘/10Z ‘L€ Jaquaoaq JO Sy 'Spunj anuaAal
|e10ads snolBA SapN(oUl UWNJOD SPUNy [BjuawuIaA0b Jay)o pejebaibBe ay] 'Spun4 [ejuawWionos) Joyio

‘uoljiw £'z$
40 M0BP G1LOZ L€ Jaquiada( Sy} Uey) ss9| 000'8t1$ SI 210Z L€ Joquiada( Je Joyep aul "L10Z ul spew
a1am 109foid sjy} uo Juawhed Bulurewsas ay | 10s8loid SHY AJUNWWOD 9oUSNJUOY SU) JO UOIONNSUOD
QU 0} pajejal uojjw G'€$ PapNIoul 910z ‘L€ 12quiada( Jo se spaaooid asou) woly pred aq o) Bululeway
'sjoafoud pajejel [ejides oy Aed 0} 1P Jo NG'ZL$ Panss! funod sy} ‘90z Buling '960'806$ 40 ddueleq
Jeak Joud By} woly SSESI09P B SI YDIYM UOl||Iw Z'g$ J0 doueleq aaiebau e pey puny sjoafoid |epded
sAunod ay) ‘210z ‘L€ Joaquaoa( Jo sy ‘sjosse |ejided Jayjo pue sanioe) [eydes Jo uoloNISuod 1o
uopisinboe ay) Buipnjou; ‘sAepno |eyded Joj sainypuadxa 0} paubisse Jo ‘PaWWoD ‘PajoLIsal e Jey)
$92JN0Sal [eloueul Jodas pue Joj Junodde 0} pasn s puny sosfoid |endes ay) pund sjosfoid [epded

‘uoljjiw /£°¢$ JO SOUEB(E] B PEY pun) 821AI8s 3gap s,Ajuno) au} ‘10z ‘L€ Jaquisda( Jo
Sy ‘spuny |eyuswulanob jo sjsoo pajelal pue ‘Jsassiul ‘lediound jgep wis)-buo| |esausb ‘jo JuswAed ayy
PUE 10} S80IN0SSI JO UOI}RINWINIOE 3y} 1O} JUNOIDE 0} PASN S| punj 82IAISS 1qap 8U| .pun- 82A8S 1qad

Jeak
snoirald ay) Se awes ay) /1.0 ‘L€ 12quiaoa( JO Se 0J9Z 0} puny Sa2IAISS Uewny ay) Aq pauJed aduejeq
pun} 2y} saaea| AJIAIIOE SIU} JO JNSa1 Y] JUNOWE SWES 3y} Jo puny [e1ausb sy} wolj ul siaysuen Aq
19S}0 SEeM Udlym uoj(iw 6 |L$ JO Sso| |euonesado ue paonpoid 7|0z Jeah |easi4 ‘Ajuno) ey ybnouyy pue
Aq papiroid sweiboid soueusjulEW BWIODU| PUB S3DIAISS [EIO0S SNOLEA 8U) SI8)SIUlWpPE pue Auno) ay)
JO sjuap|sal 0} S3VIAISS UONEeN|Igeya 9snge Bnup ‘wisijoyodje ‘saniigesip [ejuswdoleAsp (y)eay jelusw
4O BBaJE BY) Ul SadIAIas saplaoid puny siy] AjunoD ay) Ag papiaoid swelbold sa01AI9S UBWINY PUEB Y)esy
SNOLEA 10} JUNODOE O} PASN PUN) BNUAASI |B19adS B S| pun} S0IAISS UBWNY dY| pun S80INeS uewny

£10Z ‘1€ ¥38IN303A A3ANT ¥V3IA
SISATYNY ANV NOISSNOSIA S.LNIJWIOVYNVIN
NISNOOSIM ‘ALNNOD JHIV1O Nv3

A-10



€0.LYS IM 'a.11e|D neg
SNUBAY PIOJXO 121
Jawpeda asueulq
Aunog ale|) neg

10} P2JO3IP G UED UOJEWLIOJUI [BIDUBUIY [EUOKIPPE J0} S}sanbal Jo
uodal siy} ul pepiAcId uonewoul 8y} Jo Aue Buluieouod suonsany) 'saoueul s.AIUN0Y By} Ul ISl Ue
Ylm 8s0y} |[e 10y SeouBul S,AHUN0D BU} 40 MBIAIBAD |eJauab e apiaoid o} paubisap si podal [efoueul siy |

NOILVINYOZNI TVIONVNIZ ¥0d S1S3N0O3

"20€'666'0€$ 40 Are| 18BpNa 910z Bul WOy (%FE ) uoliw 9' L Jo dsea.oul ue 196png £1.0g SH 104
1.€°622°2€$ 10 Ang| B panosdde AunoDd ay| "uonoNISuUOd Mau 0} anp anjea pazienbe s,Alunod ayj ul
asealou| abejuaoiad ay} 0) (sjuswaloul Xe} pue ‘pie abplug pue peols ‘sale.ql| ‘9o1AIes 1qap 10} Jdaoxa)
soxe} Auadoid s AunoD ayy ul ymolb auyy sjosal uonelsiBa) ayy ‘Allenusssy “Ans| Jeskh 196png 8002
ay) yum Buluuibag Ans| xey Apadoid s, Aluno) ay} uo sywi| Jayuny pasodwll sey UISUOOSIAA JO S)elS 8y

‘Sple uojjeHodsuel} pUE SaNUSA3I PaJEYS 9)e)S JO UOIONPal ayl sI s)iwl| ay) Buipaaoxa Joy sanjeuad
ay) Buowy ‘syjuswalinbal azealy sjes Ara| By} 19dw 0) aunjiey Joj sanjeuad oyoads saysiiqelss anje)s
ay] ‘ejnje)s ay} Jepun pamojje suoldaoxa ayj Jo auo oy sayllenb AjunoD ay) ssajun sajel auleseq
Ay} paaoXa jouues ajel AA9| 1gep ay) pue ajel Aag| Bupesasdo syl 1ebpng €661 8y} Joj psidope ajel
Xe) 266 [Bnioe ay} SI SjWI| 8y} Joj suljaseq sy "Ans| 821A18s Jqap sy} pue Aas| Bunesado ay) Joy spwi|
a)eiedas ale 8I8Y] "SBIIUNOD UISUODSIAA 10} sajel And| xe} Apadoid ay) uo pasodwi usag aABY S)HWIT

S10Vd NMONM ATTLNIHAEND

‘sjusLIale)s
|eioueul 8y} Jo suonebiiqo wis]-buo 'Q'z SJON Ul puno} 8q UEd UOHEWIOU Jq3p Pa|IeIep 10N

"0G0'€6G'28$ PaIEI0} uonE} Wl Sy} 0} Joslgns
$S8uUpajgepul pue 0SZ'8LL'vLY$ O} psjunowe £L0Z ‘L€ Jequiedeq Jo Se Jwi 1G9p dyL uondlpsunl
s Auno) sy} ulyym Auadosd aigexe} || Jo dnjea pazienbs ay) Jo %G pPasoxa jou Aew Aunod
ay) Jo ssaupajgapul uonebiiqo |eieusb Buipuelsino [e}0} ‘salN)e)S BJE}S UISUOISIAA YIIM SOUBPIOIJE U]

2102 ‘1€ ¥3EINTFO3A A3ANT ¥V3IA
SISATTYNY ANV NOISSNOSIA S LNIJWIOVNVIN
NISNOOSIM ‘ALNNOD IHIVIO Nv3a

A-11



EAU CLAIRE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2017

Total
Governmental Business-type Primary Component
Activities Activities Government Unit
ASSETS
Cash and Investments $ 15,772,244 $ 4,123,620 $ 19,895,864 3 1,818,836
Taxes Receivable 31,287,972 2,278,187 33,566,159 -
Other Receivables 3,789,526 78,573 3,868,099 64,048
Due from Other Governments 7,404,201 933,817 8,338,018 -
Internal Balances (188,697) 188,697 - -
Inventory, at cost 30,072 699,032 729,104 18,788
Prepaid ltems 685,943 - 685,943 -
Deposit in Insurance Pool 999,731 - 999,731 -
Other Assets - - - 92,855
Restricted Assets:
Cash 300,255 - 300,255
Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation)
Land and Land Improvements 9,418,439 9,922,239 19,340,678 800,000
Intangibles 2,288,967 - 2,288,967 -
Buildings 61,272,065 18,000,623 79,272,688 -
Machinery and Equipment 2,488,928 8,123,264 10,612,192 -
Construction Work in Progress 1,216,356 1,596,385 2,812,741 -
Infrastructure 80,853,872 - 80,853,872 -
Total Assets 217,619,874 45,944 437 263,564,311 2,794 527
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to Pensions 10,928,659 1,320,425 12,249,084 -
Deferred Charge on Refunding 348,534 - 348,534 -
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 11,277,193 1,320,425 12,597,618 -
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 3,741,474 439,060 4,180,534 36,006
Other Current Liabilities 61,367 - 61,367 -
Accrued Compensation 2,166,620 250,797 2,417,417 24,355
Accrued Interest 695,535 32,185 727,720 -
Due to Other Governments 3,154,683 14,883 3,169,566 .
Unearned Revenue - 216,137 216,137 5,483
Special Deposits 629,795 - 629,795 -
Noncurrent Liabilities
Amounts Due Within One Year 10,003,383 783,800 10,787,183 -
Amounts Due in More than One Year 78,511,457 2,400,160 80,911,617 -
Net Pension Liability 1,423,481 171,989 1,595,470 .
Total Liabilities 100,387,795 4,309,011 104,696,806 65,844
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Related 4,560,288 550,985 5,111,273 -
Succeeding Years Property Taxes 29,957,801 2,278,187 32,235,988 -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 34,518,089 2,829,172 37,347,261 -
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 74,386,250 34,888,814 109,275,064 800,000
Restricted 4,388,315 - 4,388,315 -
Restricted for Friends of Beaver Creek Reserve, Inc. - - - 1,165,740
Unassigned 15,216,618 5,237,865 20,454,483 762,943
Total Net Position $ 93,991,183 $ 40,126,679 $ 134,117,862 $ 2,728,683

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



EAU CLAIRE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Statement of Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Functions/Programs:
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Human Services
Culture, Recreation and Education
Conservation and Development
Debt Service

Total Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities:
Highway
Airport

Total Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government

Component Unit:

Friends of Beaver Creek Reserve, Inc.

Program Revenues

Operating
Charges for Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions
$ 15,057,917 $ 2,786,689 $ 2,942,958
16,482,174 1,133,137 346,598
4,570,945 843,189 502,063
40,584,274 1,524,189 26,222,918
6,105,199 408,269 154,129
2,322,365 731,314 392,213
2,117,330 164,355 -
87,240,204 7,591,142 30,560,879
13,291,162 7,365,346 3,111,912
2,364,636 1,014,526 158,161
15,655,798 8,379,872 3,270,073
$ 102,896,002 $ 15,971,014 $ 33,830,952
$ 1,088,034 $ 215,986 $ 944,274

General Revenues:

Property Taxes

County Sales Tax

Other Taxes

Grants and Contributions Not Restricted
to Specific Programs

Interest and Investment Earnings

Other Revenues

Gain on Sale of Capital Assets

Transfers
Total general Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Position
Net Position - January 1

Net Position - December 31

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



EAU CLAIRE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Capital Total
Grants and Governmental Business-type Primary Component
Contributions Activities Activities Government Unit
- $ (9,328,270) % - $ (9,328,270) $ -
- (15,002,439) - (15,002,439) -
- (3,225,693) - (3,225,693) -
- (12,837,167) - (12,837,167) -
304,501 (5,238,300) - (5,238,300) -
61,833 (1,137,005) (1,137,005) -
- (1,952,975) - (1,952,975) -
366,334 (48,721,849) - (48,721,849) -
- (2,813,904) (2,813,904) -
- (1,191,949) (1,191,949) -
- - (4,005,853) (4,005,853) -
366,334 (48,721,849) (4,005,853) (62,727,702) -
- - - 72,226
28,554,921 2,159,784 30,714,705 -
10,526,061 - 10,526,061 -
1,039,770 - 1,039,770 -
2,610,955 2,610,955 -
163,510 - 163,510 207,412
- 218,226 218,226 32,296
87,572 - 87,572 -
(869.371) 869,371 - -
42,113,418 3,247,381 45,360,799 239,708
(6,608,431) (758,472) (7,366,903) 311,934
100,599,614 40,885,151 141,484,765 2,416,749
$ 93,991,183 $ 40,126,679 $ 134,117,862 $ 2,728,683




EAU CLAIRE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Batance Sheet
Govemmental Funds

December 31, 2017

Human Debi Capital Other
General Services Service Projects Govemmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash and Temporary Investments $ 9,283,524 $ 1,500 $ 3,663,996 $ 2,622 $ 710,879 $ 13,662,521
Receivables
Delinquent property laxes 1,330,171 - - - - 1,330,171
Current property tax 12,232,127 8,630,170 8,895,290 89,675 110,539 29,957 801
Accounis Receivable 677,696 2,979,138 - 132,692 3,789,526
Due from Other Governments 2,774,274 3,673,633 - - 948,575 7,396,482
Due from Other funds 3,761,621 - - - - 3,761,621
Inventory, at cost 28,789 1,283 - - - 30,072
Prepaid Expenses 538,044 109,126 - - - 647,170
Total Assets 3 30,626,246 _$ 15,394,850 3 12,559,286 $ 92,297 $ 1,902,685 $ 60,575,364
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Accounts Payable $ 813903 § 1,819,573 $ . $ 725781 $ 329,076 $ 3,688,333
Other Current Liabililies 48,398 12,969 - - - 61,367
Accrued Compensalion 1,506,603 547,902 - - 103,137 2,157,642
Special Deposits 628,288 1,607 = - - 629,795
Due to Other Governments 646,099 2,454,380 - - 54,204 3,154,683
Due to Other Funds - 1,928,349 - 1,510,963 322,309 3,761,621
Total Liabilities 3,643,291 6,764,680 - 2,236,744 808,726 13,453,441
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Succeeding Year's Property Taxes 12,232,127 8,630,170 8,895,290 89,675 110,539 29,957,801
Unavailable Revenue 138,953 - - - 87,367 226,320
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 12,371,080 8,630,170 8,895,290 89,675 197,906 30,184,121
FUND BALANCE (DEFICITS)
Nonspendable 1,897,004 110,409 - - - 2,007,413
Restricted - . 3,663,996 636,952 4,300,948
Assigned 2,099,444 - - - 307,312 2,406,756
Unassigned 10,615,427 (110,409) - (2,234,122) (48,211) 8,222,685
Total Fund Balances (deficit) 14,611,875 - 3,663,996 (2,234,122) 896,053 16,937,802
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances (Deficit) $ 30,626,246 $ 15,394 850 $ 12,559,286 $ 92,297 $ 1,902,685 $ 60,575,364
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Fund baiance from above $ 16,937,802
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in funds 157,638,627
Wisconsin Retirement Pension Plan- net deferred inflows/outflow of resources over the pension liability 4,922,158
The internal service fund is used by management 1o charge the costs of risk management to individual funds
The assets and liabilities are included in govemmental activities in the statement of net position. $ 1,841,814
Less Internal Service Fund equity allocated to enterprise funds (188,697) 1,663,117
Unavailable revenue recognized as revenue on the enlity-wide 226,320
Unamortized difference in the carrying amount of refunded debt and it's reacquisition price 348,534
Long-term liabilities, including notes payable, capital leases, compensated absences as well as
accrued interest and unamortized discounts are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds (87,635,375)
Net Position of Governmental Activilies $ 93,991,183

The notes to the financial statements are an integral par of this statement.



EAU CLAIRE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Licenses and Permits
Fines, Forfeits and Penaities
Public Charges for Services
Intergovernmental Charges for Services
Investment Income
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Human Services
Culture, Recreation and Education
Conservation and Development
Capital Outlay
General Government
Public Safety
Health and Human Services
Culture, Recreation and Education
Conservation and Development
Debt Service
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of Debt
Premium on Bonds
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance (Deficit) - January 1

Fund Balance (Deficit) - December 31

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

Human Debt Capital Other Total
General Services Service Projects Governmental Govemmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

$ 23,820,036 $ 7,897,538 $ 7,866,870 $ 42,500 $ 355,555 39,982,499
5,507,427 23,000,435 - 61,833 3,155,087 31,724,782
496,373 - - - 119,208 615,581
364,016 - - - - 364,016
4,396,365 560,278 - - 993,898 5,950,541
599,243 - - 164,355 - 763,598
163,505 - - 5 - 163,510
707,171 619,883 - - 293,244 1,620,298
36,054,136 32,078,134 7,866,870 268,693 4,916,992 81,184,825
12,803,594 - - - - 12,803,594
14,408,068 - - - 300,382 14,708,450
- - - - 1,237,479 1,237,479
2,837,519 34,012,427 - - 2,815,582 39,665,528
2,209,261 - - . - 2,209,261
2,007,576 - - - 292,769 2,300,345
- - - 1,946,993 - 1,946,993

- - - 206,555 - 206,555

- - - 54,178 - 54,178

- - - 3,956,941 . 3,956,941

- - - 88,594 - 88,594

- - 6,040,679 - 6,040,679

- - 2,123,993 113,631 - 2,237,624
34,266,018 34,012,427 8,164,672 6,366,892 4,646,212 87,456,221
1,788,118 (1,934,283) (297,802) (6,098,188) 270,780 (6,271,398)

- - - 9,750,000 - 9,750,000

- - 118,097 55,981 - 174,078

- 1,934,293 - - - 1,934,293
(2,115,907) - - (6,850,000) . (8,965,907)
(2,115,907) 1,934,293 118,097 2,955,981 - 2,892,464
(327,789) - (179,705} (3,142,218) 270,780 (3,378,932)
14,939,664 - 3,843,701 908,096 625,273 20,316,734
$ 14,611,875 $ - $ 3,663,996 $ (2234122) $ 896,053 16,937,802




EAU CLAIRE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ (3,378,932)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay
exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capital outlay $ 8,266,120
Depreciation (5,276,548) 2,989,572

Increase(Decrease) in the net Pension Asset (Liability) (2,053,344)
Less amount allocated to Business-type activities 156,734 (1,896,610)

Unavailable revenue in the governmental funds is reported as revenue on the
entity-wide financial statements (24,788)

Long-term debt incurred in governmental funds is reported as an other financing source,
but is reported as an increase in long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and
does not affect the statement of activities. The amount of the long-term debt incurred in
current year is (9,750,000)

Premiums are reported as other financing sources in governmental funds but are amortized over
the life of the related debt in the government wide statements. The premium on debt issued is (174,079)

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. In the current
year, these amounts consisted of:
Principal Retirement on Bonds and Notes 6,035,000
Principal on Long-Term payable to City of Eau Claire 5,679 6,040,679

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds

Amortization of Debt Premium 160,401

Amortization of deferred charge on refunding (36,074)

Net Change in Accrued Interest Payable (4,033)

Net Change in Compensated Absences (54,153) 66,141

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales,
trade-ins, and donations) (193,658)

Internal service funds are used by management to account for risk management operations.
The change in net position of this internal services fund is allocated to governmental

activities. (389,337)
Less amount allocated to Enterprise Funds 102,581 (286,756)
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 5 (6,608,431)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



EAU CLAIRE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position

Assets

Currenl Assels
Cash and Temporary Cash Investments
Resiricted Cash
Taxes Receivable
Accounts Recaeivable
Due from Other Governments
Invenlory, al cost
Prepaid Items

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Land and Land tmprovmenls
Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Construction Work in Progress
Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets
Deposit in Insurance Pool
Tolal Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Related to Pansions

Tolal Assels and Deferred Oulflows
of Resources

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Interesl Payable
Accrued Compensation
Due to Olher Governmenis
Unearned Revenue

Current Portion of Long-Term Liabililies:
General Obligation Debt
Accrued Employee Leave
Claims Payable
Capital Leases Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities (Net of Current Portion)
General Obligation Notes
Capilal Leases Payable
Wisconsin Reliremenl System Pension Liability
Claims Payabie
Accrued Employee Leave

Tolal Noncurrent Liabililies
Tolal Liabililies
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Succeeding Year's Property Taxes

Wisconsin Retirement Syslem Pension Related

Tolal Deferred Inflows of Resources

Tolal Liabilities and Deferred inllow of Resources

Net Position
Invesiment in Capital Assels
Restricted
Insurance Escrow
Unreslricted

Tolal Net Position

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and

Nel Position

Net Posilion of Proprietary Funds

Adjustmenl to reflect consalidation of internal service fund activities relaled to enterprise funds

Tolal Nel Posilion of Business-Type Activities

Proprietary Funds

December 31, 2017

Business-Type Activiljes-Enlerprise Funds

Governmental
Aclivities

Highway Inlernal Service
Dep Airport Totals Funds
5 3,054,119 3 1,069,501 $ 4,123,620 $ 2,111,230
: i . 298,748
1,879,157 399,030 2,278,187 .
28,267 50,308 78,573 -
928,522 5,295 933,817 7,719
699,032 - 699,032 .
= - - 38,773
6,589,097 1,524,132 8,113,229 2,456,470
126,804 19,979,567 20,106,371
2,779,051 26,331,413 29,110,464
14,229,370 2,108,407 16,337,777
- 1,596,385 1,596,385
(8,972,355) (20,536,131) (29,508,486)
8,162,870 29,479,641 37,642,511
. - 999,731
8,162,870 29,479,641 37,642,511 999,731
14,751,867 31,003,773 45,755,740 3,456,201
1,207,379 113,046 1,320,425 50,240
3 15,959,346 $ 31,116,819 5 47,076,165 s 3,508,441
$ 352,751 5 86,309 s 439,060 $ 53,141
14,579 17,606 32,185 -
228,801 21,996 250,797 8,978
2,620 12,263 14,883 .
199,274 16,863 216,137
- 101,690 101,690 .
233,801 24,357 258,158 -
. . E 820,000
423,952 423,952 .
1,455,778 281,084 1,736,862 882,119
5 491,360 491,360
1,736,695 . 1,736,695 .
157,264 14,725 171,989 6,544
- - - 755,000
155,868 16,237 172,105 -
2,049,827 522,322 2,572,149 761,544
3,508,605 803,406 4,309,011 1,643,663
1,879,157 399,030 2,278,187 -
503,813 47,172 550,985 20,964
2,382,970 446,202 2,829,172 20,964
5,888,575 1,248,608 7,138,183 1,664,627
6,002,223 28,886,591 34,888,814
. % F 298,748
4,068,548 980,620 5,049,168 1,543,066
10,070,771 29,867,211 39,937,982 1,841,814
$ 15,958,346 $ 31,116,819 5 47,076,165 3 3,506,441
S =LA

The noles to the financial statements are an integral part of this slatement

$ 39,937,982
188,697
$ 40,126,679



EAU CLAIRE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Governmental
Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds Activities
Highway Internal Service
Department Airport Totals ~_ Funads
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 7,365,346 $ 1,014,526 $ 8,379,871 $ 940,234
Other Charges 218,226 - 218,226 -
Total Operating Revenues 7,583,572 1,014,526 8,598,097 940,234
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance 12,266,092 935,489 13,201,581 572,049
Depreciation and Amortization 887,857 1,392,297 2,280,154 -
Claims - - - 758,841
Total Operating Expenses 13,153,949 2,327,786 15,481,735 1,330,890
Operating Income (Loss) (5,570,377) (1,313,260) (6,883,638) (390,656)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
General Property Taxes 1,764,705 395,079 2,159,784 -
Intergovernmental Grants ' 3,111,912 158,161 3,270,073
Interest Expense (48,476) (23,005) (71,481)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 4,828,141 530,235 5,358,376 -
Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers (742,236) (783,025) (1,625,261) (390,656)
TRANSFERS AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Transfers In (Out) 7,031,614 7,031,614
Capital Contributions to Governmental Activities (6,162,244) (6,162,244) -
Change in Net Position 127,134 (783,025) (655,891) (390,656)
Net Position - January 1 9,943,637 30,650,236 40,593,873 2,232,470
Net Position - December 31 $ 10,070,771 $ 29,867,211 $ 39,937,982 3 1,841,814
Change in Net Position - Proprietary Funds $ (655,891)
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds (102,581)
Change in Net Position - Business-Type Activities $ (758,472)
Net Position Business-Type - January 1 $ 40,885,151
Change in Net Position - Business-Type Activities (758,472)
Net Position Business-Type - December 31 $ 40,126,679

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



EAU CLAIRE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received from Customers

Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services

Claims Paid

Payments on Behalf of Employees
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

General Property Tax

Transfers In

Operating Grants and Miscellaneous Revenue Received
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer from Other Funds for Construction
Cash Payments for Capital Assets
Cash Payments for Principal on Debt
Cash Payments for Interest on Debt
Infrastructure Construction Expense for Governmental Activities

Net Cash (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

Cash Balance at Beginning of Year

Cash Balance at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile the excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenses to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and Amortization

Change in WRS Liability

Change in WRS Deferred Outflow
Change in WRS Deferred Inflow
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in:
Other Accounts Receivable

Business-Type Activities

Governmental
Activities

Due from Other Governments

Prepaid Items
Inventories

Increase (Decrease) in:

Accounts Payable
Claims Payable
Accrued Liabilities

Unearned Revenue
Accrued Employee Leave

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Highway Total Internal Service
Department Airport Enterprise Funds Funds

$ 7,934,038 $ 1,013,338 $ 8,947,377 $ 1,024,054

(9,168,887) (516,892) (9,685,779) (497,329)

- % - (375,841)

(4,205,974) (339,508) (4,545,482) (94,322)

(5,440,823) 156,939 (5,283,884) 56,562

1,764,705 395,079 2,159,784 -

181,614 - 181,614 -
3,111,912 158,161 3,270,073
5,058,231 553,240 5,611,471 -
6,850,000 - 6,850,000 -
(1,110,976) (475,881) (1,586,857) -

(369,203) (98,014) (467,217) -

(47,702) (25,915) (73,617)
(6,162,244) - (6,.162,244)

(840,125) (599,810) (1,439,935} -
(1,222,717) 110,369 (1.112,348) 56,562
4,276,836 959,132 5,235,968 2,353,416

$ 3,054,119 $ 1,069,501 $ 4,123,620 $ 2,409,978
$ (5,670,377) $(1,313260) § (6,883,637) § (390,658)
887,857 1,392,297 2,280,154 -

(313,337) (27,224) (340,561) (1,610)

679,497 61,665 741,162 2,173

(223,676) (20,188) (243,864) 756

(13,616) (12,871) (26,487) 91,539

371,448 (330) 371,118 (7.719)

- - - (38,773)

(17,281) - (17,281) -

(1,249,685) 60,307 (1,189,378) 13,362

- - - 383,000

(11,989) (2,187) (14,176) 4,490

(7,366) 12,014 4,648 -
27,702 6,716 34,418

129,554 1,470,199 1,599,753 447,218

3 (5,440.823) $ 156,939 $ (5,283,884) § 56,562

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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EAU CLAIRE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position
Fiduciary Funds

December 31, 2017

Agency
Funds
Assets
Cash and Temporary Cash Investments $ 16,281,486
Taxes Receivable 208,898
Total Assets 3 16,490,384
Liabilities
Special deposits $ 1,185,217
Due to other governments 15,305,167
Total Liabilities $ 16,490,384

A-21
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Quarles & Brady LLP
411 East Wisconsin Avenue
Milwaukee, WI 53202

November 1, 2018

Re:  Eau Claire County, Wisconsin ("Issuer")
$10,000,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2018A,
dated November 1, 2018 ("Notes")

We have acted as bond counsel to the Issuer in connection with the issuance of the Notes.
In such capacity, we have examined such law and such certified proceedings, certifications, and
other documents as we have deemed necessary to render this opinion.

Regarding questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied on the certified
proceedings and other certifications of public officials and others furnished to us without
undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation.

The Notes are numbered from R-1 and upward; bear interest at the rates set forth below;
and mature on September 1 of each year, in the years and principal amounts as follows:

Year Principal Amount Interest Rate
2019 $ 970,000 %
2020 945,000 o
2021 965,000 o
2022 985,000 L
2023 1,015,000 -
2024 965,000 L
2025 995,000 o
2026 1,020,000 L
2027 1,055,000 L
2028 1,085,000

Interest is payable semi-annually on March 1 and September 1 of each year commencing on
September 1, 2019.

The Notes maturing on September 1, 2025 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior
to maturity, at the option of the Issuer, on September 1, 2024 or on any date thereafter. Said
Notes are redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities selected by the Issuer,
and within each maturity by lot, at the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date
of redemption.

[The Notes maturing in the years are subject to mandatory
redemption by lot as provided in the resolution awarding the Notes, at the redemption price of

par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption and without premium.]

QB\54302402.1
B-2



We further certify that we have examined a sample of the Notes and find the same to be
in proper form.

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, it is our opinion under existing law that:

1. The Notes have been duly authorized and executed by the Issuer and are valid and
binding general obligations of the Issuer.

2. All the taxable property in the territory of the Issuer is subject to the levy of ad
valorem taxes to pay principal of, and interest on, the Notes, without limitation as to rate or
amount. The Issuer is required by law to include in its annual tax levy the principal and interest
coming due on the Notes except to the extent that necessary funds have been irrevocably
deposited into the debt service fund account established for the payment of the principal of and
interest on the Notes.

3. The interest on the Notes is excludable for federal income tax purposes from the
gross income of the owners of the Notes. The interest on the Notes is not an item of tax
preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") on individuals. The Code contains
requirements that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Notes in order for interest
on the Notes to be or continue to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax
purposes. Failure to comply with certain of those requirements could cause the interest on the
Notes to be included in gross income retroactively to the date of issuance of the Notes. The
Issuer has agreed to comply with all of those requirements. The opinion set forth in the first
sentence of this paragraph is subject to the condition that the Issuer comply with those
requirements. We express no opinion regarding other federal tax consequences arising with
respect to the Notes.

We express no opinion regarding the accuracy, adequacy, or completeness of the Official
Statement or any other offering material relating to the Notes. Further, we express no opinion
regarding tax consequences arising with respect to the Notes other than as expressly set forth
herein.

The rights of the owners of the Notes and the enforceability thereof may be subject to
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and similar laws affecting creditors' rights
and may be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of
equity, whether considered at law or in equity.

This opinion is given as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to revise or
supplement this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our

attention, or any changes in law that may hereafter occur.

QUARLES & BRADY LLP
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APPENDIX C

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM

The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the securities
(the "Securities™). The Securities will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co.
(DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.
One fully-registered Security certificate will be issued for [each issue of] the Securities, [each] in the aggregate
principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC. [If, however, the aggregate principal amount of
[any] issue exceeds $500 million, one certificate will be issued with respect to each $500 million of principal
amount, and an additional certificate will be issued with respect to any remaining principal amount of such issue.]

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York
Banking Law, a "banking organization™ within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation™ within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code,
and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues,
corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's
participants ("Direct Participants') deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct
Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized
book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical
movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC,
National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered
clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and
clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either
directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants™). DTC has a Standard & Poor's rating of AA+. The DTC Rules
applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about
DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive
a credit for the Securities on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Security
("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners
will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to
receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings,
fromthe Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers
of ownership interests in the Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing
their ownership interests in Securities, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Securities is
discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the
name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. The deposit of Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or
such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual
Beneficial Owners of the Securities; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose
accounts such Securities are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.



10.

11.

12.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to
time. [Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of
notices of significant events with respect to the Securities, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed
amendments to the Security documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to ascertain that
the nominee holding the Securities for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners.
In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request
that copies of notices be provided directly to them.]

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Securities within an issue are being redeemed,
DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be
redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Securities unless
authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC
mails an Omnibus Proxy to County as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede
& Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Securities are credited on the
record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Securities will be made to Cede & Co., or such
other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct
Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the County or
Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by
Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case
with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, Agent, or the County, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend
payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is
the responsibility of the County or Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the
responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of
Direct and Indirect Participants.

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Securities purchased or tendered, through its Participant,
to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Securities by causing the Direct Participant to
transfer the Participant's interest in the Securities, on DTC's records, to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent. The
requirement for physical delivery of Securities in connection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will
be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Securities are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC's
records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Securities to [ Tender/Remarketing] Agent's DTC account.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Securities at any time by giving
reasonable notice to the County or Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is
not obtained, Security certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The County may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor
securities depository). In that event, Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources
that the County believes to be reliable, but the County takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate") is executed and
delivered by Eau Claire County, Wisconsin (the "Issuer") in connection with the issuance of
$10,000,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2018A, dated November 1, 2018 (the
"Securities"). The Securities are being issued pursuant to resolutions adopted on October 2,
2018 and October 16, 2018 (collectively, the "Resolution") and delivered to
(the "Purchaser") on the date hereof. Pursuant to the Resolution, the Issuer
has covenanted and agreed to provide continuing disclosure of certain financial information and
operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain events. In addition, the Issuer
hereby specifically covenants and agrees as follows:

Section 1(a). Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being
executed and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the holders of the Securities in order to
assist the Participating Underwriters within the meaning of the Rule (defined herein) in
complying with SEC Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5). References in this Disclosure Certificate to holders of
the Securities shall include the beneficial owners of the Securities. This Disclosure Certificate
constitutes the written Undertaking required by the Rule.

Section 1(b). Filing Requirements. Any filing under this Disclosure Certificate must be
made solely by transmitting such filing to the MSRB (defined herein) through the Electronic
Municipal Market Access ("EMMA") System at www.emma.msrb.org in the format prescribed
by the MSRB. All documents provided to the MSRB shall be accompanied by the identifying
information prescribed by the MSRB.

Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the defined terms set forth in the Resolution, which
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this
Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

"Annual Report" means any annual report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

"Audited Financial Statements" means the Issuer's annual financial statements, which are
currently prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for
governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and
which the Issuer intends to continue to prepare in substantially the same form.

"Final Official Statement" means the Final Official Statement dated October 17, 2018
delivered in connection with the Securities, which is available from the MSRB.

"Fiscal Year" means the fiscal year of the Issuer.

"Governing Body" means the County Board of Supervisors of the Issuer or such other
body as may hereafter be the chief legislative body of the Issuer.

QB\54302345.1
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"Issuer" means Eau Claire County, Wisconsin, which is the obligated person with respect
to the Securities.

"Issuer Contact" means the Finance Director of the Issuer who can be contacted at 721
Oxford Avenue, Suite 3400, Eau Claire, Wisconsin 54703, phone (715) 839-2827, fax (715) 839-
1669.

"Listed Event" means any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure
Certificate.

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

"Participating Underwriter" means any of the original underwriter(s) of the Securities
(including the Purchaser) required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of the
Securities.

"Rule" means SEC Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the SEC under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time, and official
interpretations thereof.

"SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Section 3. Provision of Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements.

(a) The Issuer shall, not later than 365 days after the end of the Fiscal Year,
commencing with the year ending December 31, 2018, provide the MSRB with an Annual
Report filed in accordance with Section 1(b) of this Disclosure Certificate and which is
consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. The Annual Report
may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may
cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate;
provided that the Audited Financial Statements of the Issuer may be submitted separately from
the balance of the Annual Report and that, if Audited Financial Statements are not available
within 365 days after the end of the Fiscal Year, unaudited financial information will be
provided, and Audited Financial Statements will be submitted to the MSRB when and if
available.

(b) If the Issuer is unable or fails to provide to the MSRB an Annual Report by the
date required in subsection (a), the Issuer shall send in a timely manner a notice of that fact to the
MSRB in the format prescribed by the MSRB, as described in Section 1(b) of this Disclosure
Certificate.

Section 4. Content of Annual Report. The Issuer's Annual Report shall contain or
incorporate by reference the Audited Financial Statements and updates of the following sections
of the Final Official Statement to the extent such financial information and operating data are not
included in the Audited Financial Statements:

QB\54302345.1
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DEBT - Direct Debt

DEBT - Debt Limit

VALUATIONS - Current Property Valuations

TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS - Tax Levies and Collections

=

Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the Issuer or related public entities,
which are available to the public on the MSRB’s Internet website or filed with the SEC. The
Issuer shall clearly identify each such other document so incorporated by reference.

Section 5. Reporting of Listed Events.

(a) This Section 5 shall govern the giving of notices of the occurrence of any of the
following events with respect to the Securities:

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies;

2. Non-payment related defaults, if material;

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;

4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed

or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-
TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of
the Securities, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Securities;

7. Modification to rights of holders of the Securities, if material;

8. Securities calls, if material, and tender offers;

9. Defeasances;

10. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Securities, if
material;

11.  Rating changes;
12.  Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Issuer;
13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer

or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, other than in the
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake

QB\54302345.1
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such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such
actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and

14.  Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a
trustee, if material.

For the purposes of the event identified in subsection (a)12. above, the event is
considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent
or similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other
proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has
been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but
subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an
order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental
authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the
Issuer.

(b) When a Listed Event occurs, the Issuer shall, in a timely manner not in excess of
ten business days after the occurrence of the Listed Event, file a notice of such occurrence with
the MSRB. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Listed Events described in subsections (a)
(8) and (9) need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the notice (if any) of the
underlying event is given to holders of affected Securities pursuant to the Resolution.

(c) Unless otherwise required by law, the Issuer shall submit the information in the
format prescribed by the MSRB, as described in Section 1(b) of this Disclosure Certificate.

Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Issuer's obligations under the
Resolution and this Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior
redemption or payment in full of all the Securities.

Section 7. Issuer Contact; Agent. Information may be obtained from the Issuer Contact.
Additionally, the Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a dissemination agent to assist
it in carrying out its obligations under the Resolution and this Disclosure Certificate, and may
discharge any such agent, with or without appointing a successor dissemination agent.

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Resolution
or this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any
provision of this Disclosure Certificate may be waived, if the following conditions are met:

(a)(i) The amendment or waiver is made in connection with a change in circumstances
that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature,
or status of the Issuer, or the type of business conducted; or

(i1) This Disclosure Certificate, as amended or waived, would have complied with the

requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary offering, after taking into account any
amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and
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(b) The amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests of beneficial
owners of the Securities, as determined and certified to the Issuer by an underwriter, financial
advisor, bond counsel or trustee.

In the event this Disclosure Certificate is amended for any reason other than to cure any
ambiguities, inconsistencies, or typographical errors that may be contained herein, the Issuer
agrees the next Annual Report it submits after such amendment shall include an explanation of
the reasons for the amendment and the impact of the change, if any, on the type of financial
statements or operating data being provided.

If the amendment concerns the accounting principles to be followed in preparing
financial statements, then the Issuer agrees that it will give an event notice and that the next
Annual Report it submits after such amendment will include a comparison between financial
statements or information prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those
prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles.

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be
deemed to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of
dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or
including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event,
in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate. If the Issuer chooses to
include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in
addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer shall have
no obligation under this Disclosure Certificate to update such information or include it in any
future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.

Section 10. Default. (a) Except as described in the Final Official Statement, in the
previous five years, the Issuer has not failed to comply in all material respects with any previous
undertakings under the Rule to provide annual reports or notices of events.

(b) In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any provision of this
Disclosure Certificate any holder of the Securities may take such actions as may be necessary
and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the
Issuer to comply with its obligations under the Resolution and this Disclosure Certificate. A
default under this Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an event of default with respect to
the Securities and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of
the Issuer to comply with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance.
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Section 11. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of
the Issuer, the Participating Underwriters and holders from time to time of the Securities, and
shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have executed this Certificate in our official capacities
effective the 1st day of November, 2018.

Nicholas Smiar

Chairperson
(SEAL)

Janet K. Loomis
County Clerk

QB\54302345.1
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APPENDIX E
NOTICE OF SALE

$10,000,000* GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTES, SERIES 2018A
EAU CLAIRE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Bids for the purchase of $10,000,000* General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2018A (the "Notes") of Eau
Claire County, Wisconsin (the "County") will be received at the offices of Ehlers & Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers™), 3060
Centre Pointe Drive, Roseville, Minnesota 55113-1105, Municipal Advisors to the County, until 10:30 A.M., Central
Time,and ELECTRONIC PROPOSALS will be received via PARITY:, in the manner described below, until 10:30
A.M. Central Time, on October 16, 2018, at which time they will be opened, read and tabulated. The bids will be
presented to the Board of Supervisors for consideration for award by resolution at a meeting to be held at 7:00 P.M.,
Central Time, on the same date. The bid offering to purchase the Notes upon the terms specified herein and most
favorable to the County will be accepted unless all bids are rejected.

PURPOSE
The Notes are being issued pursuant to Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin Statutes, for public purposes, including
financing 2018 capital improvement projects and highway improvements. The Notes are general obligations of the
County, and all the taxable property in the County is subject to the levy of a tax to pay the principal of and interest
on the Notes as they become due which tax may, under current law, be levied without limitation as to rate or amount.

DATES AND MATURITIES

The Notes will be dated November 1, 2018, will be issued as fully registered Notes in the denomination of $5,000
each, or any integral multiple thereof, and will mature on September 1 as follows:

Year Amount* Year Amount* Year Amount*
2019 $970,000 2023  $1,015,000 2027  $1,055,000
2020 945,000 2024 965,000 2028 1,085,000
2021 965,000 2025 995,000
2022 985,000 2026 1,020,000

ADJUSTMENT OPTION

* The County reserves the right to increase or decrease the principal amount of the Notes on the day of sale, in
increments of $5,000 each. Increases or decreases may be made in any maturity. If any principal amounts are
adjusted, the purchase price proposed will be adjusted to maintain the same gross spread per $1,000.

TERM BOND OPTION
Bids for the Notes may contain a maturity schedule providing for any combination of serial bonds and term bonds,

subject to mandatory redemption, so long as the amount of principal maturing or subject to mandatory redemption
in each year conforms to the maturity schedule set forth above. All dates are inclusive.
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INTEREST PAYMENT DATES AND RATES

Interest will be payable on September 1 and March 1 of each year, commencing September 1, 2019, to the registered
owners of the Notes appearing of record in the bond register as of the close of business on the 15th day (whether or
not a business day) of the immediately preceding month. Interest will be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year
of twelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. All
Notes of the same maturity must bear interest from date of issue until paid at a single, uniform rate. Each rate must
be expressed in an integral multiple of 5/100 or 1/8 of 1%.

PAYING AGENT

The County may designate a County officer or select a bank or trust company to act as paying agent (the “Paying
Agent”). If a bank or trust company is selected as Paying Agent, the County will pay the charges for Paying Agent
services. The County reserves the right to remove the Paying Agent and to appoint a successor.

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY FORMAT

Unless otherwise specified by the purchaser, the Notes will be designated in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for
The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"). DTC will act as securities depository for the Notes,
and will be responsible for maintaining a book-entry system for recording the interests of its participants and the
transfers of interests between its participants. The participants will be responsible for maintaining records regarding
the beneficial interests of the individual purchasers of the Notes. So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of
the Notes, all payments of principal and interest will be made to the depository which, in turn, will be obligated to
remit such payments to its participants for subsequent disbursement to the beneficial owners of the Notes.

PAYING AGENT

The County may designate a County officer or select a bank or trust company to act as paying agent (the “Paying
Agent”). If a bank or trust company is selected as Paying Agent, the County will pay the charges for Paying Agent
services. The County reserves the right to remove the Paying Agent and to appoint a successor.

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

At the option of the County, the Notes maturing on or after September 1, 2025 shall be subject to optional redemption
prior to maturity on September 1, 2024 or on any date thereafter, at a price of par plus accrued interest.

Redemption may be in whole or in part of the Notes subject to prepayment. If redemption is in part, the selection of
the amounts and maturities of the Notes to be redeemed shall be at the discretion of the County. If only part of the
Notes having a common maturity date are called for redemption, then the County or Paying Agent, if any, will notify
DTC of the particular amount of such maturity to be redeemed. DTC will determine by lot the amount of each
participant's interest in such maturity to be redeemed and each participant will then select by lot the beneficial
ownership interest in such maturity to be redeemed.

Notice of such call shall be given by sending a notice by registered or certified mail, facsimile or electronic
transmission, overnight delivery service or in any other manner required by DTC, not less than 30 days nor more than
60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owner of each Note to be redeemed at the address
shown on the registration books.
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DELIVERY

On or about November 1, 2018, the Notes will be delivered without cost to the winning bidder at DTC. On the day
of closing, the County will furnish to the winning bidder the opinion of bond counsel hereinafter described, an
arbitrage certification, and certificates verifying that no litigation in any manner questioning the validity of the Notes
is then pending or, to the best knowledge of officers of the County, threatened. Payment for the Notes must be
received by the County at its designated depository on the date of closing in immediately available funds.

LEGAL MATTERS

An opinion as to the validity of the Notes and the exemption from federal taxation of the interest thereon will be
furnished by Quarles & Brady LLP, Bond Counsel to the County, and will be available at the time of delivery of the
Notes. The legal opinion will be issued on the basis of existing law and will state that the Notes are valid and binding
general obligations of the County; provided that the rights of the owners of the Notes and the enforceability of the
Notes may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting
creditors' rights and by equitable principles (which may be applied in either a legal or equitable proceeding). (See
“FORM OF LEGAL OPINION" found in Appendix B).

Quarles & Brady LLP has also been retained by the County to serve as Disclosure Counsel to the County with respect
to the Notes. Although, as Disclosure Counsel to the County, Quarles & Brady LLP has assisted the County with
certain disclosure matters, Quarles & Brady LLP has not undertaken to independently verify the accuracy,
completeness or sufficiency of the Preliminary Official Statement or other offering material relating to the Notes and
assumes no responsibility whatsoever nor shall have any liability to any other party for the statements or information
contained or incorporated by reference in the Preliminary Official Statement. Further, Quarles & Brady LLP makes
no representation as to the suitability of the Notes for any investor.

SUBMISSION OF BIDS
Bids must not be for less than $9,880,000 plus accrued interest on the principal sum of $10,000,000 from date of
original issue of the Notes to date of delivery. The maximum proposal allowed is $10,200,000. Prior to the time
established above for the opening of bids, interested parties may submit a bid as follows:

1) Electronically to bondsale@ehlers-inc.com; or

2) Facsimile submission to Ehlers, Facsimile Number (651) 697-8555; or

3) Electronically via PARITY in accordance with this Notice of Sale until 10:30 A.M. Central Time, but no bid
will be received after the time for receiving bids specified above. To the extent any instructions or directions
set forth in PARITY conflict with this Notice of Sale, the terms of this Notice of Sale shall control. For
further information about PARITY, potential bidders may contact Ehlers or i-Deal LLC at 1359 Broadway,
2" Floor, New York, New York 10018, Telephone (212) 849-5021.

Bids must be submitted to Ehlers via one of the methods described above and must be received prior to the time
established above for the opening of bids. Each bid must be unconditional except as to legality. Neither the County
nor Ehlers shall be responsible for any failure to receive a facsimile submission.

A good faith deposit (“Deposit™) in the amount of $200,000 shall be made by the winning bidder by wire transfer of
funds to KleinBank, 1550 Audubon Road, Chaska, Minnesota, ABA No. 091915654 for credit: Ehlers &
Associates Good Faith Account No. 3208138. Such Deposit shall be received by Ehlers no later than two hours after
the bid opening time. The County reserves the right to award the Notes to a winning bidder whose wire transfer is
initiated but not received by such time provided that such winning bidder’s federal wire reference number has been
received by such time. In the event the Deposit is not received as provided above, the County may award the Notes
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to the bidder submitting the next best bid provided such bidder agrees to such award. The Deposit will be retained
by the County as liquidated damages if the bid is accepted and the Purchaser fails to comply therewith.

The County and the winning bidder who chooses to so wire the Deposit hereby agree irrevocably that Ehlers shall
be the escrow holder of the Deposit wired to such account subject only to these conditions and duties: 1) All income
earned thereon shall be retained by the escrow holder as payment for its expenses; 2) If the bid is not accepted, Ehlers
shall, at its expense, promptly return the Deposit amount to the winning bidder; 3) If the bid is accepted, the Deposit
shall be returned to the winning bidder at the closing; 4) Ehlers shall bear all costs of maintaining the escrow account
and returning the funds to the winning bidder; 5) Ehlers shall not be an insurer of the Deposit amount and shall have
no liability hereunder except if it willfully fails to perform or recklessly disregards, its duties specified herein; and
6) FDIC insurance on deposits within the escrow account shall be limited to $250,000 per bidder.

No bid can be withdrawn after the time set for receiving bids unless the meeting of the County scheduled for award
of the Notes is adjourned, recessed, or continued to another date without award of the Notes having been made.

AWARD

The Notes will be awarded to the bidder offering the lowest interest rate to be determined on a True Interest Cost
(TIC) basis. The County’s computation of the interest rate of each bid, in accordance with customary practice, will
be controlling. In the event of a tie, the sale of the Notes will be awarded by lot. The County reserves the right to
reject any and all bids and to waive any informality in any bid.

BOND INSURANCE
If the Notes are qualified for any bond insurance policy, the purchase of such policy shall be at the sole option and
expense of the winning bidder. Any cost for such insurance policy is to be paid by the winning bidder, except that,
if the County requested and received a rating on the Notes from a rating agency, the County will pay that rating fee.
Any rating agency fees not requested by the County are the responsibility of the winning bidder.

Failure of the municipal bond insurer to issue the policy after the Notes are awarded to the winning bidder shall not
constitute cause for failure or refusal by the winning bidder to accept delivery of the Notes.

CUSIP NUMBERS
The County will assume no obligation for the assignment or printing of CUSIP numbers on the Notes or for the
correctness of any numbers printed thereon, but will permit such numbers to be printed at the expense of the winning
bidder, if the winning bidder waives any delay in delivery occasioned thereby.

QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS

The County will designate the Notes as qualified tax-exempt obligations for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
In order to assist the underwriters in complying with the provisions of Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by the Securities
and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the County will enter into an

undertaking for the benefit of the holders of the Notes. A description of the details and terms of the undertaking is
set forth in Appendix D of the Preliminary Official Statement.
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NEW ISSUE PRICING

The winning bidder will be required to provide, in a timely manner, certain information necessary to compute the
yield on the Notes pursuant to the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and to provide a
certificate which will be provided by Bond Counsel upon request.

@) The winning bidder shall assist the County in establishing the issue price of the Notes and shall execute and
deliver to the County at closing an “issue price” or similar certificate satisfactory to Bond Counsel setting forth the
reasonably expected initial offering price to the public or the sales price or prices of the Notes, together with the
supporting pricing wires or equivalent communications. All actions to be taken by the County under this Notice of
Sale to establish the issue price of the Notes may be taken on behalf of the County by the County’s municipal advisor
identified herein and any notice or report to be provided to the County may be provided to the County’s municipal
advisor.

(b) The County intends that the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(3)(i) (defining “competitive
sale” for purposes of establishing the issue price of the Notes) will apply to the initial sale of the Notes (the
“competitive sale requirements”) because:

@ The County shall disseminate this Notice of Sale to potential underwriters in a manner that is
reasonably designed to reach potential investors;

2 all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to bid;

3) the County may receive bids from at least three underwriters of municipal bonds who have
established industry reputations for underwriting new issuances of municipal bonds; and

(@) the County anticipates awarding the sale of the Notes to the bidder who submits a firm offer to
purchase the Notes at the highest price (or lowest interest cost), as set forth in this Notice of Sale.

Any bid submitted pursuant to this Notice of Sale shall be considered a firm offer for the purchase of the Notes, as
specified in this bid.

©) If all of the requirements of a “competitive sale” are not satisfied, the County shall advise the winning bidder
of such fact prior to the time of award of the sale of the Notes to the bidder. In such event, any bid submitted will not
be subject to cancellation or withdrawal and the County agrees to use the rule selected by the bidder on its bid form
to determine the issue price for the Notes. On its bid form, each bidder must select one of the following two rules
for determining the issue price of the Notes: (1) the first price at which 10% of a maturity of the Notes (the “10%
test”) is sold to the public as the issue price of that maturity or (2) the initial offering price to the public as of the sale
date as the issue price of each maturity of the Notes (the “hold-the-offering-price rule”).

(d) If all of the requirements of a “competitive sale” are not satisfied and the bidder selects the hold-the-offering-
price rule, the winning bidder shall (i) confirm that the underwriters have offered or will offer the Notes to the public
on or before the date of award at the offering price or prices (the “initial offering price”), or at the corresponding yield
oryields, set forth in the bid submitted by the winning bidder and (ii) agree, on behalf of the underwriters participating
in the purchase of the Notes, that the underwriters will neither offer nor sell unsold Notes of any maturity to which
the hold-the-offering-price rule shall apply to any person at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the
public during the period starting on the sale date and ending on the earlier of the following:

(1) the close of the fifth (5) business day after the sale date; or

(2) the date on which the underwriters have sold at least 10% of that maturity of the Notes to the public at
a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public.
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The winning bidder will advise the County promptly after the close of the fifth (5™) business day after the sale whether
it has sold 10% of that maturity of the Notes to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to
the public.

The County acknowledges that in making the representation set forth above, the winning bidder will rely on:

(i) the agreement of each underwriter to comply with requirements for establishing issue price of the Notes,
including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-price rule, if applicable to the Notes, as set
forth in an agreement among underwriters and the related pricing wires,

(i) in the event a selling group has been created in connection with the initial sale of the Notes to the public,
the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group to comply with the requirements for establishing
issue price of the Notes, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule,
if applicable to the Notes, as set forth in a selling group agreement and the related pricing wires, and

(iii) in the event that an underwriter or dealer who is a member of the selling group is a party to a third-party
distribution agreement that was employed in connection with the initial sale of the Notes to the public, the agreement
of each broker-dealer that is party to such agreement to comply with the requirements for establishing issue price of
the Notes, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable
to the Notes, as set forth in the third-party distribution agreement and the related pricing wires. The County further
acknowledges that each underwriter shall be solely liable for its failure to comply with its agreement regarding the
requirements for establishing issue price rule of the Notes, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with
the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the Notes, and that no underwriter shall be liable for the failure of any
other underwriter, or of any dealer who is a member of a selling group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a
third-party distribution agreement to comply with its corresponding agreement to comply with the requirements for
establishing issue price of the Notes, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-
price rule as applicable to the Notes.

(e) If all of the requirements of a “competitive sale” are not satisfied and the bidder selects the 10% test, the
bidder agrees to promptly report to the County, Bond Counsel and Ehlers the prices at which the Notes have been sold
to the public. That reporting obligation shall continue, whether or not the closing date has occurred, until either (i)
all Notes of that maturity have been sold or (ii) the 10% test has been satisfied as to each maturity of the Notes,
provided that, the winning bidder’s reporting obligation after the Closing Date may be at reasonable periodic intervals
or otherwise upon request of the County or bond counsel.

4] By submitting a bid, each bidder confirms that:

(i) any agreement among underwriters, any selling group agreement and each third-party distribution
agreement (to which the bidder is a party) relating to the initial sale of the Notes to the public, together with the related
pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter, each dealer who is a member of the
selling group, and each broker-dealer that is party to such third-party distribution agreement, as applicable, to:

(A) report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Notes of each maturity allocated to it, whether
or not the Closing Date has occurred until either all securities of that maturity allocated to it have been sold or it is
notified by the winning bidder that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Notes of that maturity, provided
that, the reporting obligation after the Closing Date may be at reasonable periodic intervals or otherwise upon request
of the County or bond counsel.

(B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed by
the winning bidder and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and

(ii) any agreement among underwriters or selling group agreement relating to the initial sale of the Notes to
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the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter, each
dealer who is a member of the selling group and each broker dealer that is a party to a third-party distribution
agreement to be employed in connection with the initial sale of the Notes to the public to require each broker-dealer
that is a party to such third-party distribution agreement to:

(A) to promptly notify the winning bidder of any sales of Notes that, to its knowledge, are made to a purchaser
who is arelated party to an underwriter participating in the initial sale of the Notes to the public (each such term being
used as defined below), and

(B) to acknowledge that, unless otherwise advised by the underwriter, dealer or broker-dealer, the winning
bidder shall assume that each order submitted by the underwriter, dealer or broker-dealer is a sale to the public.

(9) Sales of any Notes to any person that is a related party to an underwriter participating in the initial sale of the
Notes to the public (each term being used as defined below) shall not constitute sales to the public for purposes of this
Notice of Sale. Further, for purposes of this Notice of Sale:

Q) “public” means any person other than an underwriter or a related party,

(i) “underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the County (or
with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the
Notes to the public and (B) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly
with a person described in clause (A) to participate in the initial sale of the Notes to the public
(including a member of a selling group or a party to a third-party distribution agreement participating
in the initial sale of the Notes to the public),

(i) a purchaser of any of the Notes is a “related party” to an underwriter if the underwriter and the
purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (A) more than 50% common ownership of the voting
power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are corporations (including direct ownership
by one corporation of another), (B) more than 50% common ownership of their capital interests or
profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including direct ownership by one partnership of
another), or (C) more than 50% common ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the
corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity
is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of the applicable
stock or interests by one entity of the other), and

(iv) “sale date” means the date that the Notes are awarded by the County to the winning bidder.
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PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT

Bidders may obtain a copy of the Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Notes prior to the bid opening by
request from Ehlers at www.ehlers-inc.com by connecting to the Bond Sales link. The Syndicate Manager will be
provided with an electronic copy of the Final Official Statement within seven business days of the bid acceptance.
Up to 10 printed copies of the Final Official Statement will be provided upon request. Additional copies of the Final
Official Statement will be available at a cost of $10.00 per copy.

Information for bidders and bid forms may be obtained from Ehlers at 3060 Centre Pointe Drive, Roseville, Minnesota
55113-1105, Telephone (651) 697-8500.

By Order of the Board of Supervisors

Eau Claire County, Wisconsin
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BID FORM

The Board of Supervisors October 16, 2018
Eau Claire County, Wisconsin

RE: $10,000,000* General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2018A
DATED: November 1, 2018

For all or none of the above Notes, in accordance with the Notice of Sale and terms of the Global Book-Entry System (unless otherwise specified by
the Purchaser) as stated in this Official Statement, we will pay you $ (not less than $9,880,000, and not more than $10,200,000)
plus accrued interest to date of delivery for fully registered Notes bearing interest rates and maturing in the stated years as follows:

% due 2019 % due 2023 % due 2027
% due 2020 % due 2024 % due 2028
% due 2021 % due 2025
% due 2022 % due 2026

* The County reserves the right to increase or decrease the principal amount of the Notes on the day of sale, in increments of $5,000 each. Increases
or decreases may be made in any maturity. If any principal amounts are adjusted, the purchase price proposed will be adjusted to maintain the same
gross spread per $1,000.

All Notes of the same maturity must bear interest from date of issue until paid at a single, uniform rate. Each rate must be expressed in an integral
multiple of 5/100 or 1/8 of 1%.

We enclose our Deposit in the amount of $200,000, to be held by the County pending delivery and payment. Alternatively, if we are the winning bidder,
we will wire our Deposit to KleinBank, 1550 Audubon Road, Chaska, Minnesota, ABA No. 091915654 for credit: Ehlers & Associates Good Faith
Account No. 3208138. Such Deposit shall be received by Ehlers & Associates no later than two hours after the bid opening time. The County reserves
the right to award the Notes to a winning bidder whose wire transfer is initiated but not received by such time provided that such winning bidder’s federal
wire reference number has been received. In the event the Deposit is not received as provided above, the County may award the Notes to the bidder
submitting the next best bid provided such bidder agrees to such award. If our bid is not accepted, said deposit shall be promptly returned to us. If the
Deposit is wired to such escrow account, we agree to the conditions and duties of Ehlers & Associates, Inc., as escrow holder of the Deposit, pursuant
to the Notice of Sale. This bid is for prompt acceptance and is conditional upon delivery of said Notes to The Depository Trust Company, New York,
New York, in accordance with the Notice of Sale. Delivery is anticipated to be on or about November 1, 2018.

This bid is subject to the County’s agreement to enter into a written undertaking to provide continuing disclosure under Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by
the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as described in the Preliminary Official Statement for the Notes.

We have received and reviewed the Official Statement and have submitted our requests for additional information or corrections to the Final Official
Statement. As Syndicate Manager, we agree to provide the County with the reoffering price of the Notes within 24 hours of the bid acceptance.

This bid is a firm offer for the purchase of the Notes identified in the Notice of Sale, on the terms set forth in this bid form and the Notice of Sale, and
is not subject to any conditions, except as permitted by the Notice of Sale.

By submitting this bid, we confirm that we are an Underwriter and have an established industry reputation for underwriting new issuances of municipal
bonds. YES: NO: .

If the competitive sale requirements are not met, we elect to use the (circle one): 10% test / hold-the-offering-price rule to determine the issue price of
the Notes.

Account Manager: By:
Account Members:

Award will be on a true interest cost basis. According to our computations (the correct computation being controlling in the award), the total dollar
interest cost (including any discount or less any premium) computed from November 1, 2018 of the above bid is $ and the true interest
cost (TIC) is %.

The foregoing offer is hereby accepted by and on behalf of the Board of Supervisors of Eau Claire County, Wisconsin, on October 16, 2018.
By: By:
Title: Title:
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